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RELATED TO FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS A 4€< This Quarterly Report on FormA 10-Q contains statements that are, or may be considered to be, forward-looking statements within the
meaning of The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, as amended, Section-27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the a€ceSecurities Acta€, and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the &€ceExchange Acta€. All statements that are not historical facts, including statements about our beliefs or expectations, are forward-
looking statements. These statements may be identified by such forward-looking, terminology as &€ceexpect,a€ a€ceestimate,a€ a€ceintend,a€ a€cebelieve,a€ d€ceanticipate,a€ a€cemay,a€
a€cewill, a€ a€cmeshould,a€ a€cecould,a€ a€cecontinue,a€ a€celikelya€ or similar statements or variations of such terms. Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements
that relate to our future revenue, margins, costs, operating expenses, tax expenses, capital expenditures, earnings, profitability, product development, demand, acceptance and market share,
competitiveness, market opportunities and performance, levels of research and development, the success of our marketing, sales and service efforts, outsourced activities, anticipated
manufacturing, customer and technical requirements, the ongoing viability of the solutions that we offer and our customersa€™ success, our managementa€™ s plans and objectives for our
current and future operations and business focus, litigation, our ability to retain, hire and integrate skilled personnel, our ability to identify and address increased cybersecurity risks, including
as a result of employees continuing to work remotely, the anticipated growth prospects of our business, the expected benefits and other statements relating to our divestitures and acquisitions,
the adequacy, effectiveness and success of cost saving plans and our business transformation initiatives, our ability to continue to identify acquisition targets and successfully acquire and
integrate desirable products and services and realize expected revenues and revenue synergies, our adoption of newly issued accounting guidance, the levels of customer spending, our
dependence on key suppliers or vendors to obtain services for our business on acceptable terms, including the impact of supply chain disruptions, general economic conditions, the impact of
inflation, and the sufficiency of financial resources to support future operations and the material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. Such statements are based on current
expectations and involve risks, uncertainties, and other factors which may cause the actual results, our performance or our achievements to be materially different from any future results,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include the risk factors which are set forth in Part I, Item 1A. a&€ceRisk Factorsa€ in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended SeptemberA 30,A 2024, or the 4€ce2024A Annual Report on Form 10-K&€,A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or
4€eSECA€A on November 27, 2024, as updated and/or supplemented in subsequent filings with the SEC. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking
statements, which speak only as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and are based on informationA reasonably known to us at such time. We do not undertake any obligation to
release revisions to these forward-looking statements, to reflect events or circumstances that occur after the date of this Quarterly Report on FormA 10-Q or to reflect the occurrence or effect
of anticipated or unanticipated events. Precautionary statements made herein should be read as being applicable to all related forward-looking statements wherever they appear in this
Quarterly Report on FormA 10-Q. Any additional precautionary statements made in our 2024A Annual Report on FormA 10-K should be read as being applicable to all related forward-looking
statements whenever they appear in this Quarterly Report on FormA 10-Q. A 4€< Unless the context indicates otherwise, references in this Quarterly Report on FormA 10-Q to 4€cewea€,
a€ceusa€, a€aeoura€, A€cethe Companya€, and other similar references refer to Azenta,A Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries. A 4€< TRADEMARKS, TRADE NAMES AND SERVICE MARKS

A 4€< This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q includes our trademarks, trade names and service marks, which are our property and are protected under applicable intellectual property laws. Solely
for convenience, trademarks, trade names and service marks may appear in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q without the A®, TM and SM symbols, but such references are not intended to
indicate, in any way, that we or the applicable owner forgo or will not assert, to the fullest extent permitted under applicable law, our rights or the rights of any applicable licensors to these
trademarks, trade names and service marks. We do not intend our use or display of other partiesd€™ trademarks, trade names or service marks to imply, and such use or display should not be
construed to imply a relationship with, or endorsement or sponsorship of us by, these other parties. A 4€< INDUSTRY AND OTHER DATA A &€« Unless otherwise indicated, information
contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q concerning our industry and the markets in which we operate, including our general expectations, market position and market opportunity, is
based on managementa€™ s estimates and research, as well as industry and general publications and research, surveys and studies conducted by third parties. We believe the information from
these third-party publications, research, surveys and studies included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q is reliable. Managementa€™s estimates are derived from publicly available
information, their knowledge of our industry and their assumptions based on such information and knowledge, which we believe to be reasonable. This data involves a number of assumptions
and limitations which are necessarily subject to a high degree of uncertainty and risk due to a variety of factors, including those described in the 2024A Annual Report on Form 10-K and those
described in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q under d€ceInformation Related to Forward-Looking Statementsa€ above and Part II, [tem 1A d€ceRisk Factorsa€ below, as updated and/or
supplemented in subsequent filings with the SEC. These and other factors could cause our future performance to differ materially from our assumptions and estimates. 3 Table of Contents A
PARTA I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION A ItemA 1. Financial Statements A AZENTA,A INC. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (unaudlted) (In thousands, except share and per
share data) A A A December 31, AA September 30, AAA 2024 AA 2024 AAAAAAAAAA AssetsAAAAAAAA Current assets AAAAA a€<A Cash and cash equivalents

A $377,494A A $280,030A Short-term marketable securities A A 85,951A A A 151,162A Accounts receivable, net of allowance for expected credit losses ($5,182 and $5,349, respectively)

A A 155,038A A A 156,273A Inventories A A 81,006A A A 78,923A Short-term restricted cash A A 2,080A A A 2,069A Prepaid expenses and other current assets A A 72, 140A A A 75,456A
Current assets held for sale A A 72,573A A A 88,894A Total current assets A A 846,282A A A 832,807A Property, plant and equipment, net A A 149,666A A A 155,622A Long-term marketable
securities A A 27,433A A A 49,454A Long-term deferred tax assets A A 627A A A 837A Operating lease right-of-use assets A A 60,460A A A 60,406A Goodwill A A 672,906A A A 691,409A
Intangible assets, net A A 11 5,822A A A 125,042A Other assets A A 9,410A A A 10,670A Noncurrent assets held for sale A A 158,604A AA 173,794A Total assets

A $2,041,210A A $2,100,041A Liabilities and stockholders' equity A €< A A a€< A Current liabilities A &4€< AA 4€<A Accounts payable A $31,740A A $33,344A Deferred revenue

AAa1, 018A A A 30,493A Accrued warranty and retrofit costs A A 4,973A A A 5,213A Accrued compensation and benefits A A 28,405A A A 27,785A Accrued customer deposits

A A 26,833A A A 22,324A Accrued income taxes payable A A6,931A A A 9,266A Accrued expenses and other current liabilities A A 38,965A A A 46,364A Current liabilities held for sale

A A 23,602A A A 30,050A Total current liabilities A A 202,467A A A 204,839A Long-term tax reserves A A 408A A A 398A Long-term deferred tax liabilities A A 18,668A A A 18,084A Long-
term operating lease liabilities A A54,341A A A 56,683A Other long-term liabilities A A 8,229A A A 8,874A Noncurrent liabilities held for sale A A 38,131A A A 42,196A Total liabilities

A A 322,244A A A 331,074A a€<AA AAA a€<A Stockholders' equity AAAAA a€<A Preferred stock, $0.01 par value - 1,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued or outstanding

A A a€”A A A a€”A Common stock, $0.01 par value - 125,000,000 shares authorized, 59,153,757 shares issued and 45,691,888 shares outstanding at December 31, 2024; 59,031,953 shares
issued and 45,570,084 shares outstanding at September 30, 2024 A A 592A A A 590A Additional paid-in capital A A 511,068A A A 505,958A Accumulated other comprehensive loss

A A (55,237)A A (13,464) Treasury stock, at cost - 13,461,869 shares at December 31, 2024 and September 30, 2024 A A (200,956)A A (200,956) Retained earnings

A A1,463,499A A A 1,476,839A Total stockholders' equity A A 1,718,966A A A 1,768,967A Total liabilities and stockholders' equity A $2,041,210A A $2,100,041A A The accompanying notes
are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements. A &€« 4 Table of Contents A AZENTA,A INC. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
OPERATIONS (unaudited) (In thousands, except per share data) A 4€< A Three Months Ended A 4€<A December 31, A a€<A 2024 A A 2023 A Revenue A 4€<A A a€<A Products A $
43,827 A A $43,707 A ServicesA A 103,683 A A A 98,018 A Total revenue A A 147,510 A A A 141,725 A Cost of revenue A 4€<A A a€<A Products A A 25,334 A A A 26,783 A
Services A A 53,505 A A A 53,199 A Total cost of revenue A A 78,839 A A A 79,982 A Gross proﬁtA A 68,671 A A A 61,743 A Operating expenses A a€<A A a€<A Research and
development A A 6,380A A A 7,313A Selling, general and administrative A A 73,213A A A 69,889 A Restructuring charges A A 431 A A A 786 A Total operating expenses A A
80,024 A A A 77,988 A Operatlng loss A A (11 353)A A (16,245 ) Other income A 4€<A A a€<A Interest income, net A A 4,298 A A A 9,955 A Other income, net A A 1,203A A A
518 A Loss before income taxes A A (5 852)A A (5,772 ) Income tax expense A A 3,569A A A 1,420 A Loss from contmulng operations A A (9,421 )A A (7,192 ) Loss from discontinued
operations, net of tax A A (3,919)A A (8 532 ) Netloss A $ (13,340 ) A $ (15,724 ) Basic net loss per share: A 4€<A A a€<A Loss from continuing operations A $(0.21)A $(0.13) Loss
from discontinued operations, net of tax A A (0.09)A A (0.15) Basic net loss per share A $ (0.29) A $ (0.28) Diluted net loss per share: A a€<A A a€<A Loss from contmulng operations A
$(0.21)A $ (0.13) Loss from discontinued operations, net oftax A A (0.09 ) A A (0.15 ) Diluted net loss per share A $ (0.29) A $ (0.28) Weighted average shares used in computing net loss
per share A a€<A A a€<A BasicA A 45,626 A A A 56,709 A Diluted A A 45,626 A A A 56,709 A A The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements. A 4€< 5 Table of Contents A A AZENTA,A INC. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (unaudited) (In
thousands) A 4€< A Three Months Ended A &€<A December 31, A 4€<A 2024 AA 2023 A Net loss A $(13,340)A $(15,724) Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax AAAAAAAA Net
investment hedge currency translation adjustment, net of tax effects of $0 and $4,576 for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively A A 5,412A A A (13,368) Foreign
currency translation adjustments A A (47,298)A A 46,494A Changes in unrealized losses on marketable securities, net of tax effects of $0 and $864 for the three months ended December 31,
2024 and 2023, respectively A A 163A A A 2,524A Actuarial loss on pension plans, net of tax effects of $17 and $2 during the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively

A A (50)A A (8) Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax A A (41,773)A A 35,642A Comprehensive income (loss) A $(55,113)A $19,918A A The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements. A 4€< 6 Table of Contents A AZENTA,A INC. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (unaudited)

(In thousands) A 4€< A Three Months Ended December 31, A 4€<A 2024 AA 2023 A Cash flows from operating activites AAAAAAAA Netloss A $(13,340)A $(15,724) Adjustments to

reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities: A a€<A A &€< A Depreciation and amortization A A 18,100A A A 21,866A Inventory write-downs and other asset write-offs

A A1,470A A A a€”A Stock-based compensation A A 5,112A A A 3,202A Amortization and accretion on marketable securities A A (541)A A (704) Deferred income taxes A A 457A A A (7,317)
(Gain) loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment AA (B)A A 266A Changes in operating assets and liabilities: A &a€<A A a€<A Accounts receivable A A 4,850A A A 2,830A Inventories
A A (4,646)A A 4,929A Accounts payable A A (2,602)A A 2,442A Deferred revenue A A 10,462A A A (321) Accrued warranty and retrofit costs A A 174A A A (554) Accrued compensation and tax
w1thh01dmgs A A 650A A A (979) Accrued restructuring costs A A (566)A A (90) Other assets and liabilities A A 11,056A A A 3,910A Net cash provided by operating activities

A A30,628A A A13,756A Cash flows from investing activities AAAAAAA A Purchases of property, plant and equipment A A (8,580)A A (11,291) Purchases of marketable securities

A A (40,754)A A a€”A Sales and maturities of marketable securities A A 125,590A A A 110,316A Net cash provided by investing activities A A 76,256A A A 99,025A Cash flows from financing
activities AAAAA AA A Payments of finance leases A A (215)A A (198) Withholding tax payments on net share settlements on equity awards A A 4€”A A A (2) Share repurchases

A A a€”A A A (112,953) Excise tax payment | for settled share repurchases A A (4,911)A A 4€”A Net cash used in financing activities AA (5, 126)A A (113,153) Effects of exchange rate changes on
cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash A A (8, 311)A A 24,548A Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash A A 93,447A A A 24,176A Cash, cash equivalents and restricted

cash, beginning of period A A 320,990A A A 684,045A Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of period A $414,437A A $708,221A Supplemental disclosures: A 4€< A A &€<A Cash



paid / (received) for income taxes, net A A (6,148)A A 2,599A Purchases of property, plant and equipment included in accounts payable and accrued expenses AA3249AAA2,164A
Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash to the condensed consolidated balance sheets A €< A A a4€<A A a€<A December 31, A A September 30, A a€<A 2024 AA 2024

A Cash and cash equivalents of continuing operations A $377,494A A $280,030A Cash included in current assets held for sale A A 26,544A A A 30,899A Short-term restricted cash
A A2,080AAA?2,069A L(_)ng -term restpcted cash Amqluded in other assets AAB8319AAA 7 992A Total cash, cash equwalents and restrlcted cash shown in the condensed consolidated

CommonAAAAAA AccumulatedAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Common A A Stock at AA Additional AA Other AAAAAAAAAAAAAAA StockAA Par AA Paid-In A A
Comprehensive A A Retained A A Treasury A A Total AAA Shares AA Value A A Capital A A Income (Loss) AA _Earnings A A Stock A A Equity

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Balance September 30, 2024 A A 59,031,953A A $590AA $505, 958A A $(13, 464)A $1,476,839A A - $(200, 956)A $1,768,967A

Shares issued under restrlgted stock and pqrqhqse plans, net of shgres withheld for employee taxes A A 121 804A A A 2AAA (2)A Aae”AAAae”AAAae”AAAae”A Stock-based
compensation A A 4€”AAA a€”AAA5,112AAA a€”"AAAac”AAA a€”AAAS5,112A NetlossA A a€”AAAac”AAAac”"AAAa€”"AAA (13,340)A A a€”A A A (13,340) Net investment hedge
currency translation adjustment, net of tax AAa€e”AAAa€”’AAAa€”AAAS5412AAA a€”"AA A a€”A A A 5,412A Foreign currency translation adjustments

AAae’AAAa€”AAAa€"AAA (47, 298)A Aae”AAAac’AAA (47,298) Changes in unrealized losses on marketable securities, net of tax

AAac"AAAae”"AAAa€”"AAA163AAAaE”A A A a€”A A A 163A Actuarial loss on penswn plans, net of tax AAae”"AAAac”AAAae”AAA (50)AAa€e”AAA a€”A A A (50) Balance December
31,2024 A A59,153,757A A $592A A $511,068A A $(55,237)A $1,463,499A A $(200,956)A $1,718,966AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Balance September 30, 2023
A A71,294,247A A $713A A $1 156,160A A $(62 426)A $1 641,009A A $(200 956)A $2,534,500A Shares issued under restricted stock and purchase plans, net of shares withheld for employee
taxes A A 144,894A A A 2A A A (2)A A 4€"A A A 4€"A A A 4€"A A A 4€"A Open market repurchases A A (2,258,860)A A 4€”A AA 4¢"A A A 4€"A A A 4€”A A A (113,956)A A (113,956) Retirement
of treasury shares A A 4€”A A A (23)A A (113,933)A A 4€”"A A A 4€”A A A 113,956A A A 4€”A Stock-based compensation A A 4€”"A A A 4€”AAA3,202AAA a€”"AAAa€”AA A a€"AAA3,202A

Netloss AA a€”AAAa€"AAAac"AAAaE"AAA (15 724)A A a€”A A A (15,724) Net investment hedge currency translation adJustment net of tax

AAac”AAAa€"AAAa€”"AAA(13,368)A A a€”AAAa€”A A A (13,368) Foreign currency translation adjustments AAac”"AAAa€”AAAa€”"AAA46,494A A A a€"AAA a€”A A A 46,494A
Changes in unrealized losses on marketable securities, net of tax AAAAAAa€"AAAa€”"AAA2,524AAAa€"AA A a€"A A A2,524A Actuarial loss on pension plans, net of tax
AAae"AAAae”AAAae”AAA (8)AAa€”A AAa€”A A A (8) Balance December 31, 2023 A A 69,180,281A A $692A A $1,045,427A A $(26,784)A $1,625,285A A $(200,956)A $2,443,664A A
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements. A 4€< 8 Table of Contents A AZENTA,A INC. NOTESA TO CONDENSED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited) A 4€< A 1. Nature of Operations A Azenta, Inc. (a€ceAzentad€, or the &€ceCompanya€) is a leading global provider of biological and
chemical compound sample exploration and management solutions for the life sciences industry. The CompanyA entered the life sciences market inA 2011,A leveraging itsA in-house precision
automation and cryogenics capabilities that itA wasA then applying in the semiconductor manufacturing market. A This led the CompanyA to develop andA provide solutions for automated ultra-
cold storage.A Since then, the CompanyA hasA expanded itsA life sciences offerings through internal investments and a series of acquisitions. The Company supports itsA customers from
research and clinical development to commercialization with itsA sample management andA automated storage, as well asA genomic services expertise to help itsA customers bring impactful
and breakthrough therapies to market faster. The CompanyA understands the importance of sample integrity and offers a broad portfolio of products and services supporting customers at every
stage of the life cycle of samples, 1nclud1ng procurement, automated storage systems, genomic services and a multitude of sample consumables, informatics and data software, andA sample
repository services. The Companya€ ™sA expertise, global footprint, and leadership positions enable itA to beA aA trusted global partner to pharmaceutical, biotechnology, and life sciences
research institutions. A Discontinued Operations A During the first quarter of fiscal year 2025, following approval by the Board of Directors of the Company, the Company publicly announced
its plan to sell the B Medical Systems business. The B Medical Systems businessA operates as a separate business unit within the Company andA operated as its own operating and reportable
segment called the B Medical Systems segmentA focused on the manufacturing and distribution of temperature-controlled storage and transportation solutions in international markets to
governments, health institutions, and non-government organizations.A A The Company determined that the B Medical Systems segmentA met the 4€ceheld for salea€A criteria and
a€cediscontinued operationsa€A criteria in accordance with Financial Accounting Standard Boards (A4€ceFASBa€) Accounting Standards Codification (4€ceASCA€) 205,A Presentation of
Financial StatementsA (4€0eFASB ASC 2054€) as of November 12, 2024. Results related to the B Medical Systems segment are included within discontinued operations. Please refer to Note
3,A Discontinued OperationsA for further information about the discontinued business. The CondensedA Consolidated Balance Sheet and CondensedA Consolidated Statements of Operations, as
well asA the notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, have beenA reclassified for all periods presented to reflect the discontinuation of the B Medical Systems segmentA in
accordance with FASB ASC 205. The discussion in the notes to these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, unless otherwise stated, relate solely to the Companya€™ sA continuing
operations. A Also included in discontinued operations is a loss contlngencyA related to the Company's sale of the semiconductor automation business in February 2022.A The Company accrued
a liability for theA loss contingencyA and had $1.7 million remainingA in the balance of the accrued liability as of December 31, 2024. A 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies A
Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation A The accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and all entities where it has a
controlling financial interest and have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (2€ceGAAPA€). All intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. A The accompanying year-end balance sheet as of September 30, 2024A was derived from audited, consolidated financial statements but
does not include all disclosures required by GAAP. The unaudited interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the same basis as the audited, consolidated
financial statements and in the opinion of management, reflect all adjustments, which include only normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair statement of the Companya€™s financial
position, results of operations, and cash flows for the periods presented. A Certain information and disclosures normally included in the Companya€™s annual consolidated financial statements
have been condensed or omitted and, accordingly, the accompanying financial information should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto
contained in the Companya€™s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended SeptemberA 30,A 2024 and filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (4€ceSEC&€) on
November 27, 2024A (the 4€0e2024A Annual Report on Form 10-K&€). A 9 Table of Contents A Revisions toA Previously Issued Financial Statements and Financial InformationA A A As
previously disclosed in the 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K,A in connection with the preparation of its fiscal yearA 2024A financial statements, the CompanyA identified classificationA errors
in its Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year endedA September 30, 2023A and the Condensed ConsolidatedA Statements of Cash Flows for the interim periods endedA
March 31, 2023,A A June 30, 2023,A December 31, 2023,A March 31, 2024,A andA June 30, 2024.A Specifically, the Companya€™s historical classification of the effects of exchange rate
changes on the Companya€™ s foreign denominated cash and cash equivalentA balances was misclassified between the effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents and cash
flows from operating activities in its Consolidated StatementA of Cash Flows for the year endedA September 30, 2023A and itsA Condensed ConsolidatedA StatementsA of Cash Flows for the
interim periods endedA June 30, 2023,A December 31, 2023,A March 31, 2024,A andA June 30, 2024.A Additionally, the Company corrected for immaterial classification errors in between
cash flows from operating activities, mvestmgA activities and fmancmgA activities, andA supplemental disclosures for all revised periods. The Company's Condensed ConsolidatedA Statements
of Cash Flows for the interim periods endedA March 31, 2023,A A June 30, 2023,A December 31, 2023,A March 31, 2024,A andA June 30, 2024A haveA been revised and disclosedA in

NoteA 21,A Revision of Previously Issued Unaudited Quarterly Information,A in the notes to the audited consolidated financial statements included in the section titled &€ceFinancial Statements
and Supplementary Dataa€ in Part II, Item 8 of theA 2024A Annual Report on Form 10-K. A The effect on the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the interim period ended
December 31, 2023 is as follows (m thousands): A A Three months ended December 31, 2023 A A A As Reported AA Adjustments AA As Rev1sed A Cash flows from operatmg activities

accounts payable and accrued expenses A ga€ 'A A $2,164A A $2,164A A The Company assessed the effect of the errors on prior periods under the guidance ofA Securities and Exchange
Commission (4€0eSECA€) Staff Accounting BulletinA No.A 99,A a€ceMateriality,A€A codified in ASCA 250,A Accounting Changes and Error Corrections. Based on itsA assessment, the Company
determinedA that the error correction isA notA material to any previously issued financial statements.A TheA correction hasA noA impact on the Company's previously reported consolidated net
income, financial position, net change in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, or total cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash as previously reported on the Company's Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows.A A Use of Estimates A The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that
affect amounts reported in the financial statements and notes thereto. Although these estimates are based on the Companya€™s knowledge of current events and actions it may undertake in
the future, actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates are associated with recording accounts receivable, inventories, goodwill, intangible assets other than goodwill, long-lived
assets, derivative financial instruments, deferred income taxes, warranty obligations, revenue over time, stock-based compensation expense, and other accounts. The Company assesses the
estimates on an ongoing basis and records changes in estimates in the period they occur and become known. A Foreign Currency Translation A Certain transactions of the Company and its
subsidiaries are denominated in currencies other than their functional currency. Foreign currency exchange gains (losses) generated from the settlement and remeasurement of these
transactions are recognized in earnings and presented within &€ceOther income4€ in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations. Net foreign currency transaction and
remeasurement gamsA were$0.5A millionA and lossesA were $0.5A million for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.A A Recently Issued Accounting
Pronouncements A In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures. The ASU requires the disclosure of
incremental segment information on an annual and interim basis, primarily through enhanced disclosures pertaining to significant segment expenses. This update is effective for annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, and requires retrospective application to all prior periods presented in the
financial statements. The Company is currently evaluating the standard to determine the impact of adoption on its disclosures.A A In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income
Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures.A The ASU is intended to enhance the transparency and decision usefulness of income tax disclosures primarily through changes to
the rate reconciliation and income taxes paid information. This update is effective for annual periods beginning afterA December 15, 2024,A though early adoption is permitted. The Company
doesA notA expectA the adoption of this standard to impact its disclosures until fiscal yearA 2026. A 10 Table of Contents A In March 2024, the SEC issued final rules under SEC Release No.
33-11275, The Enhancement and Standardization of Climate-Related Disclosures for Investors. Effective fiscal year 2026, the Company is required to disclose climate-related risks that are
reasonably likely to have a material impact on the Companya€™ s business strategy, results of operations, or financial condition. Additionally, the Company will be required to disclose the
effects of severe weather events and other natural conditions within the notes to the financial statements, subject to certain materiality thresholds. Effective fiscal year 2027, required
disclosures will also include disclosure of material direct greenhouse gas emissions from operations owned or controlled (Scope 1) and material indirect greenhouse gas emissions from
purchased energy consumed in owned or controlled operations (Scope 2). In April 2024, the SECA issued an order voluntarily staying the effectiveness of the new rules pending the completion
of judicial review of certain legal challenges to their validity. The Company, assuming adoption of the rules, A is currently evaluating the impact of these rules andA monitoring the status of the
related litigation andA SECA€™s stay,A which remains in effect as of December 31, 2024. A In 2021, the Organization of Economic Cooperation and Development (4€0eOECDA€) introduced its
Pillar IT Framework Model Rules (a€cePillar 2a€), which are designed to impose a 15% global minimum tax on the earnings of in-scope multinational corporations on a country-by-country
basis.A Certain aspects of PillarA 2A took effect onA January 1, 2024A while other aspects go into effect onA January 1, 2025.A The Company doesA notA expect the adoption of this standard to
have a material impact on its Consolidated Financial Statements as the Company doesA notA expect to meet the consolidated revenue threshold ofA 4,-750A million over the

nextA twelveA months. A In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03, Income Statement-Reporting Comprehensive Income-Expense Disaggregation Disclosures: Disaggregation of
Income Statement Expenses. The ASU requires companies to disaggregate operating expenses into specific categories such as employee compensation, depreciation, and intangible asset
amortization, by relevant expense caption on the statement of operations. This update is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2026, though early adoption is

permitted.A The Company is currently evaluating the standard to determine the impact of adoption on its consolidated financial statements and disclosures. A Other A For further information
regarding the Companya€™s significant accounting policies, please refer to NoteA 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the notes to the audited consolidated financial statements
included in the section titled 4€ceFinancial Statements and Supplementary Dataa€ in Part II, Item 8 of the 2024A Annual Report on Form 10-K. There were no material changes to the
Company4€™s critical accounting policies during the three months ended December 31, 2024. A 3. Discontinued Operations A Plan to Sell B Medical Systems Business A During the first
quarter of fiscal year 2025, following approval by the Board of Directors of the Company, the Company publicly announced its plan to sell the B Medical Systems business. The B Medical
Systems business operates as a separate business unit withinA the Company and operated as its own operating and reportable segment called the B Medical Systems segment focused on the
manufacturing and distribution of temperature-controlled storage and transportation solutions in international markets to governments, health institutions, and non-government

organizations. A This action is intended to simplify the Company's portfolio and allow management to focus on driving revenue growth and profitability in its core businesses. The decision
followedA work by the Board of Directors to evaluate strategic, operational and financial opportunities to maximize stockholder value. The Company anticipates entering into a definitive
agreement to sell its B Medical Systems business by NovemberA 2025. A The Company determined that the B Medical Systems segmentA met the 4€ceheld for salea€ criteria and
a€cediscontinued operationsa€ criteria in accordance withA FASB ASC 205A as of November 12, 2024. Results related to the B Medical Systems segment are included within discontinued
operations. The Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet and Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations, and the notes to theA Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, were
retroactively reclassifiedA for all periods presented to reflect the discontinuation of the B Medical Systems segment in accordance with FASB ASC 205.A A The following table presents the
financial results of the B Medical Systems segment included within discontinued operations (in thousands) A A Three Months Ended December 31, AAA 2024 AA 2023 A Revenue

AA1,635AA A 1,180A Selhng, general and administrative A A 6,187A A A 8,687A Restructuring charges A A314A A A 334A Total operating expenses AA8,136AAA10,201A Operating loss
A A (5,273)A A (10,433) Interest income, net A A 5A A A 127A Other income, net A A 530A A A 164A Loss before income taxes A A (4,738)A A (10,142) Income tax benefit A A (819)A A (1,610)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax A $(3,919)A $(8,532) A 11 Table of Contents A The following table presents the significant non-cash items and capital expenditures for the
discontinued operations with respect to the B Medical Systems segmentA that are included in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (in thousands): A A Three Months Ended
December 31, AAA 2024 AA 2023 A Depreciation and amortization A $3,846A A $7,219A Capital expenditures A A 757A A A 1,246A A The carrying value of the assets and liabilities of the
discontinued operations with respect to the B MedicalA Systems segment reflected as &€aeheld for salea€ on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2024A and



September 30, 2024A was as follows (in thousands): A A December 31, 2024 A A September 30, 2024 A Assets AAAAAAAA Cash and cash  equivalents A $26,544A A $30,899A Accounts
receivable, net A A8,010AAA16,438A Inventories A A 33,361A A A 36,333A Prepald expenses and other current assets A Aa, 658A A A 5,224A Current assets held for sale

operating lease liabilities A A 1,993A A A 2,109A Other long-term liabilities AA3, 336A AA3, 994A Noncurrent liabilities held for sale A $38,131A A $42,196A A 12 Table of Contents A
Disposition of Semiconductor Business A On February 1, 2022, the Company completed the sale of the semiconductor automation business for $2.9 billion in cash to Thomas H. Lee Partners,
L.P. On July 1, 2019, the Company completed the sale of the semiconductor cryogenics business for $659.8A million to Edwards Vacuum LLC (a member of the Atlas Copco Group)
(4€ceEdwardsa€). Both the semiconductor automation business and the semiconductor cryogenics business are considered discontinued operations.A The CompanyA still may haveA certain
indemnification obligations pursuant to claims made under the definitive agreement it entered into with EdwardsA in connection with the Company4a€™s sale of its semiconductor cryogenics
business in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2018. In the third quarter of fiscal year 2020, Edwards asserted claims for indemnification under the definitive agreement relating to alleged
breaches of representations and warranties relating to customer warranty claims and inventory (the 4€02020 Claima€). In addition, in January 2023, Edwards filed a lawsuit against the
Company in the Supreme Court of the State of New York in the County of New York seeking indemnification from the Company under such definitive agreement for $1.0 million and other
related damages, including interest and attorneya€™s fees, arising from a third-party claim that was included as part of their initial claims (the 46022023 Claima€). A In April 2023, the
Company responded to and filed a counterclaim against Edwards for the 2023 Claim alleging breach of the definitive agreements by Edwards and seeking a declaratory judgment. During the
third quarter of fiscal year 2023, the Company and Edwards entered into a settlement agreement related to the 2023 Claim to avoid the costs and uncertainties of potential litigation. Under the
settlement agreement, the Company paid Edwards $0.8 million from one of the indemnification escrows established at closing of the sale in return for the release of the 2023 Claim and the
release to the Company of $1.0 million from a separate indemnification escrow. The Company accrued a liability of $2.5 million for the 2020 Claim and 2023 Claim of which $0.8 million was
paid during the third quarter of fiscal year 2023. The 2020 Claim remains outstanding and $1.7 million remains in the balance of the accrued liability as ofA December 31, 2024. A The
Company had been informed that Edwards sought recovery for the 2020 Claim from the representation and warranty insurance Edwards obtained in connection with the closing of the sale of
the semiconductor cryogenics business. During the first quarter of fiscal year 2025, the Company was further informed that Edwards agreed to a payment under such insurance for claimed
amounts in excess of the applicable indemnification deductibles established under the definitive agreement, but less than the total of claimed amounts submitted for recovery. Although
management believes that any indemnifiable losses in excess of the applicable deductibles established in the definitive agreement would be covered by such insurance, Edwards is seeking
recovery from the Company for claimed amounts purportedly not covered, or inadequately covered, by such insurance (the &€ceClaim for Uncovered Amountsa€). The Company cannot
determine the probability of any losses or outcome of the Claim for Uncovered Amounts including the amount of any indemnifiable losses, if any, resulting from this claim. The Company,
however, does not believe that this claim will have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial position or results of operations, in each case, for continuing operations.A Any potential
expense incurred by the Company for these claims would be reflected in discontinued operations. A In the event of unexpected subsequent developments and given the inherent unpredictability
of these matters, there can be no assurance that the Companya€™s assessment of these claims will reflect the ultimate outcome, and an adverse outcome in these matters could, from time to
time, have a material adverse effect on the Companya€™s consolidated financial position or results of operations in particular quarterly or annual periods. A 13 Table of Contents A A 4.
Marketable Securities A The Company had sales and maturities of marketable securities of $125. 6A million and $110 3A million in the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.A There wereA immaterial realized gainsA in the three months endedA December 31, 2024 and 2023 onA sales and maturitiesA of marketable securities.A A The following is a
summary of the amortized cost and the fair value, including accrued interest receivable as well as unrealized gains (losses) on the short-term and long-term marketable securities as of
December 31, 2024 andA September 30, 2024 (1n thousands): A 4€<A a€<A A Gross AA Gross A A a€< A ae<A Amortlzed A A Unrealized A A Unreahzed AA &€« A a€« . A Cost AA Losses

overnment agencies A $118, 159A A $(1 19)A $51A A $118,091A Bank certlflcates of deposit AAs, 212A A A (13)AA 1A A A 5,200A Corporate securltles
AA77,580AAA (255)A A a€”A A A 77,325A a€<A $200,951A A $(387)A $52A A $200,616A A The amortized cost and fair valueA of the marketable securities by contractual maturities as of
December 31, 2024A are presented below (in thousands): A a€<A Amortized AA a€<A a€<A Cost AA Fair Value A Due in one year or less A $86, 122A A $85,951A Due after one year
through five years A A 23,880A A A 23,855A Due after ten years A A 3,578A A A 3,578A Total marketable securities A $113,580A A $113,384A A 14 Table of Contents A Expected maturities
could differ from contractual maturities because the security issuers may have the right to prepay obligations without prepayment penalties. A Unrealized losses from fixed-income securities
are primarily attributable to changes in interest rates. The Company does not believe any unrealized losses represent impairments based on theA evaluation of the available evidence. A A A &€«
A 5. Derivative Instruments A The Company has transactions and balances denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the transacting entity. Most of these transactions
carry foreign exchange risk in Germany, the United Kingdom and China. The Company enters into foreign exchange contracts to reduce its exposure to currency fluctuations.A Net gains and
losses related to foreign exchange contracts are recorded as a component of 4€ceOther income, neta€ in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations and wereA as follows for the
three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands): A 4€< A Three Months Ended A &€<A December 31, A 4€<A 2024 AA 2023 A Realized gains (losses) on derivatives not
designated as hedging instruments A $1,195A A $(1,239) A The notional amounts of the Companya€™s derivative instruments as of December 31, 2024 andA September 30, 2024 were as
follows (in thousands): A 4€< 4€< A December 31, AA September 30, A &€« Hedge Designation A 2024 AA 2024 A a€<a€<A a€<A A a€<A Cross-currency swap Net Investment Hedge
A $75,978A A $75,978A Foreign exchange contracts Undesignated A A 36,573A A A 60,101A A The fair values of the foreign exchange contracts are recorded in the Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheets as d€ePrepaid expenses and other current assetsa€ and d€ceAccrued expenses and other current liabilitiesa€. Foreign exchange contract assets and liabilities are measured and
reported at fair value based on observable market inputs and classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy described further in NoteA 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the
notes to the audited consolidated financial statements included in the section titled a&€ceFinancial Statements and Supplementary Dataa€ in Part II, Item 8 of the 2024A Annual Report on Form
10-K and in Note 12, Fair Value Measurements below due to a lack of an active market for these contracts. A Hedging Activities A On February 1, 2023, the Company entered into a cross-
currency swap agreement to hedge the variability of exchange rate impacts between the U.S. dollar and the Euro. Under the terms of the cross-currency swap agreement, the Company
notionally exchanged $436.0 million for 4,-400.0 million at a weighted average interest rate of 1.66%. The Company designated the cross-currency swap as a hedge of net investments against
one of its Euro denominated subsidiaries, which requires an exchange of the notional amounts at maturity. At the maturity of the cross currency-swap on February 1, 2024, the Company
delivered a notional amount of 4,—400 million and received a notional amount of $436.0 million at a Euro to U.S. dollar exchange rate of 1.09, which included a gain of $1.4 million. A 15 Table
of Contents A On February 1, 2024, the Company entered into a cross-currency swap agreement to hedge the variability of exchange rate impacts between the U.S. dollar and the Euro. Under
the terms of the cross-currency swap agreement, the Company notionally exchanged $76.0 million for 4,—70.0 million at a weighted average interest rate of 1.44%. The Company designated the
cross-currency swap as a hedge of net investments against one of its Euro denominated subsidiaries, which requires an exchange of the notional amounts at maturity on February 3, 2025. A
Following the three months ended onA December 31, 2024, at the maturity of the cross currency-swap on February 3, 2025, the Company delivered a notional amount of 4,—70.0 million and
received a notional amount of $73.0 million at a Euro to U.S. dollar exchange rate of 1.0419, which included a gain of $3.0A million. A On February 3, 2025, the Company also entered into
another cross-currency swap agreement to hedge the variability of exchange rate impacts between the U.S. dollar and the Euro. Under the terms of the cross-currency swap agreement, the
Company notionally exchanged $260.0 million for 4,-250.0 million at a weighted average interest rate of 1.80%. The Company designated the cross-currency swap as a hedge of net investments
against one of its Euro denominated subsidiaries, which requires an exchange of the notional amounts at maturity on February 2, 2026. A The cross-currency swaps were recorded as a
derivative asset withinA 4€cePrepaid expenses and other current assetsa€ as of December 31, 2024 in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets and a derivative liability within &€ceAccrued
expenses and other current liabilitiesa€ as ofA September 30, 2024 in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. A The cross-currency swap is marked to market at each reporting period,
representing the fair value of the cross-currency swap, any changes in fair value are recognized as a component of &€ceAccumulated other comprehensive lossa€ in the Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheets. The cross-currency swap is classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, described in NoteA 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the notes to the audited
consolidated financial statements included in the section titled 4&€ceFinancial Statements and Supplementary Dataa€ in Part II, Item 8 of the 2024A Annual Report on Form 10-K and in Note 12,
Fair Value Measurements below. A Interest earned on the cross-currency swap is recorded within a€ceInterest income, neta€ in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations. For the
three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company recorded interest income of $0.3A million and $1.8A million, respectively, on these instruments.A A 6. Goodwill and Intangible
Assets A The Company conducts an impairment assessment annually on April 1, or more frequently if impairment indicators are present. Changes to the Companya€™s operating segments
effective October 1, 2023 resulted in a change to the Companya€™s reporting units, which are aligned to the Companya€™s operating and reportable segments (as further described below in
Note 15, Segment and Geographic Information). A a€<A The following table sets forth the changes in the carrying amount of goodwﬂlA by operating and reportable segment since September
30, 2024A (in thousands).A A 4€<AA Sample AAAAAAAAA a€<A Management AAAAAAAAAAA Solutions AA Multiomics AA Total A Balance - October 1, 2024
A $494,649A A $196,760A A $691,409A Currency translation adjustments A A (18,503)A A 4€”A A A (18,503) Balance - December 31, 2024 A $476,146A A $196,760A A $672,906A A 16 Table
of Contents A The components of the Companya€™s identifiable intangible assets as of December 31, 2024 andA September 30, 2024 are as follows (in thousands): A A a€<A December 31,
2024 AA September 30, 2024 A ae<A a€<A A Accumulated A A Net Book AA 4€<A A Accumulated A A Net Book A 4€<A Cost AA Amortization AA Value AA Cost AA Amortization
A A Value A Patents A $1,220A A $1,220A A $a€”A A $1,227A A $1,227A A $a€”A Completed technology A A 106,665A A A 56,034A A A50,631A A A 109,949A A A 55,191A A A 54,758A
Trademarks and trade names A A 705A A A 214A A A 491A A A 726A A A 195A A A 531A Customer relationships
A A243,930A A A179,230A A A 64,700A A A 248,036A A A 178,283A A A 69,753A Total A $352,520A A $236,698A A $115,822A A $359,938A A $234,896A A $125,042A A Amortization
expenses for intangible assets wereA $6.1A million and $7.2A million, respectively, for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.A A Estimated future amortization expense for the
intangible assets for the remainder of fiscalA year 2025A and the subsequent five fiscalA years are as follows (in thousands): A Remainder of fiscal year 2025 A $18,243A 2026 A A 21,697A
2027 A A 17,290A 2028 A A 14,459A 2029 A A 11,854A 2030 A A 10,336A A A 7. Restructuring A 2024 Restructuring Plan A In the second quarter of fiscal year 2024, the Company
launched initiatives designed to optimize resources for future growth and improve efficiency across its organization. The focus of the initiatives is to improve the Companya€ ™s profitability,
which includes facilities consolidation, portfolio optimization, and organization structure simplification. The Company expects to complete the activities included in these initiatives by the end of
fiscal year 2026. As ofA the date of issuance of the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company has not identified restructuring actions related to these initiatives
that will result in additional material charges. The Company expects to identify additional actions as it further refines its plan, and theA related initiatives in future periodsA will be recorded
when specified criteria are met, including but not limited to,A communication of benefit arrangements or when the costs have been incurred. A The majority of the restructuring expenses
associated with the initiatives described above for the three months ended December 31, 2024 are severance and other related costs.A Of the total restructuring expenses in the threeA months
ended December 31, 2024, $0.2 million is related to the SMS segment, $0.1 million is related to the MultiomicsA segment,A and $0.1A million is related to Corporate. A 2023 Cost Savings
Plans A In the second and third quarters of fiscal year 2023, the Company announced cost savings plans designed to position the Company to meet the needs of its customers and accelerate
growth of the business. The cost savings plans were completed and costs from the actions were fully realized by the end of the firstA quarter of fiscal year 2024.A A A 17 Table of Contents A
The restructuring expenses associated with the 2023 cost savings plans for the three months ended December 31, 2023 are severance and related costs. A The following table
presentsA restructuring charges recognized for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands): A a€<A Three Months Ended December 31, A 4€<A 2024 AA 2023 A
Severance and related costs A $320A A $786A Other A A 111A A A 4€”A Total restructuring charges A $431A A $786A A The following table presentsA activity in the severance and related

costs accruals for theA three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands): A 4€< A Three Months Ended December 31, A a4€<A 2024 AA 2023 A Balance at beginning of period
A $755A A $665A Provisions A A 320A A A 786A Payments A A (858)A A (696) Balance at end of period A $217A A $755A A A 8. Supplementary Balance Sheet Information A Inventories A
The following is a summary of inventories at December 31, 2024 andA September 30, 2024 (in thousands): A a€<A December 31, A A September 30, A a€<A 2024 AA 2024 A at«
AAAAAAAA Raw materials and purchased parts A $39,916A A $34,134A Work-in-process A A 7,585A A A 8,402A Finished goods A A 33,505A A A 36,387A Total inventories

A $81,006A A $78,923A A Inventory reservesA were $7.2A million and $6.1A million, respectively, at December 31, 2024 andA September 30, 2024. A Warranty and Retrofit Costs A The
following is a summary of product and warranty retrofit activity for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands): A a€<A Three Months Ended December 31, A &4€<A
2024 A A 2023 A a€<A a€<A A a€<A Balance at beginning of period A $5,213A A $3,974A Accruals for warranties during the period A A 187A A A903A Costs incurred during the period

A A (427)A A (320) Balance at end of period A $4,973A A $4,557A A 18 Table of Contents A A 9. Stockholdersa€™ Equity A Share Repurchases A OnA November 4, 2022,A the Company's
Board of Directors approved anA authorization to repurchase up to $1.5A billion of the Company'sA common stock (theA 4€ce2022A Repurchase Authorizationa€). During the three months
ended December 31, 2023, the Company repurchased 2.3 million shares of common stock for $112. 9A million (excluding fees, commissions, and excise tax) under this authorization. AsA ofA
September 30, 2024,A the CompanyA hadA repurchased and retiredA 30.0A million shares of common stock for the full $1.5A billion approved under theA 2022A Repurchase Authorization.A All
shares repurchased under theA 2022A Repurchase AuthorizationA were retired, accounted for as a reduction to stockholdersa€™ _equity in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets and
treated as a repurchase of common stock for purposes of calculating earnings per share as of the applicable settlement dates. NoA additional repurchase authorization has been approved and
as such there were no shares repurchased during the three monthsA ended December 31, 2024.A A EffectiveA January 1, 2023,A all corporate share repurchases are subject to

aA oneA percent excise tax on the value of the repurchase, net of share issuances, subject to certain exclusions. The excise tax was part of The Inflation Reduction Act passed by the U.S.
government inA 2022.A The Company'sA accrual forA excise tax related to share repurchases is considered an additional cost of the share repurchases and a reduction to stockholdersa€™
equity in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. During the three months ended December 31, 2024, the Company made an excise tax payment of $4.9 million, reducing the excise tax
accrual to $6.5 million as of December 31, 2024. A Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) A a€< The following is a summary of the components of accumulated other comprehensive
1ncome (loss) net of tax for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 (1n thousands): A &€« &€« A &€« A A Unreahzed AA &€« A A a€< A A a€< A a€< A a€<AA Gams (Losses) A A
A A on Derivative A A Adjustments A A a€<A &€« A Adjustments A A Net of tax AA Net of tax AA Net of tax AA Total A Balance at September 30, 2023

A $(88,448)A $(5,135)A $31,487A A $(330)A $(62,426) Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications A A 46,494A A A 2,524A A A (13,368)A A (35)A A 35,615A Amounts



reclassmed from accumulated other comprehenswe loss A A a€ A A A a€ "A A A a€”A A A 27A A A 27A Balance at December 31, 2023 A $(41 QSA)A $(2,611) A $18, 119A A $(338)A $(26,784) A
for-Sale A A &4€<Gains (Losses) A A Liability AA a€<A a€<A Translation A A Securities A A on Derivative AA Adjustments A A a€<A a€< A Adjustments AA Net of tax AA Net of tax A A
Net of tax A A Total A Balance at September 30, 2024 A $(34,170)A $(263)A $21,468A A $(499)A $(13,464) Other comprehenswe income (loss) before reclassifications

AA(47,298)A A 163A A A 5,412A A A (68)A A (41,791) Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss A A 4€"A A A 4€"A A A 4¢"A A A 18A A A 18A Balance at December 31,
2024 A $(81,468)A $(100)A $26,880A A $(549)A $(55,237) A 19 Table of Contents A As described in Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the notes to the audited consolidated
financial statements included in the section titled &€ceFinancial Statements and Supplementary Dataa€ in Part II, Item 8 of the 2024A Annual Report on Form 10-K, unrealized gains (losses) on
available-for-sale marketable securities are reclassified from 4€ceAccumulated other comprehensive income (loss)a€ into results of operations at the time of the securitiesa€™ sale, gains
(losses) on derivative are the effective portions of changes in the fair value of the net investment hedges which are recorded in 4&€ceAccumulated other comprehensive income (loss)a€, and
amounts reclassified from &€ceAccumulated other comprehensive income (loss)a€ related to pension liability adjustments represent amortization of actuarial gains and losses.A €< A 10.
Revenue from Contracts with Customers A Disaggregated Revenue A The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers in a manner that depicts how the nature, amount,
timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. The following is revenue by significant business line for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and
2023 (in thousands) A a€<A Three months ended December 31, A 4€<A 2024 AA 2023 A Slgnlflcant Business Line A 4€<A A 4€<A Multiomics A $66,297A A $62,720A Core Products (1)
A A 49,699A A A 48,886A Sample Repository Services A A 31,514A A A 30,119A Total revenue A $147,510A A $141,725A A (1) Core Products are Automated Stores, Cryogenic Systems,
Automated Sample Tube, Consumables and Instruments and Controlled Rate Thawing Devices. A Contract Balances A Accounts Receivable, Net. Accounts receivable represent rights to
consideration in exchange for products or services that have been transferred by the Company, when payment is unconditional and only the passage of time is required before payment is due.
Accounts receivable do not bear interest and are recorded at the invoiced amount. The Company maintains an allowance for expected credit losses representing its best estimate of probable
credit losses related to its existing accounts receivable and their net realizable value. The Company determines the allowance for expected credit losses based on a number of factors, including
an evaluation of customer credit worthiness, the age of the outstanding receivables, economic trends, historical experience, and other information through the payment periods. Accounts
receivable, net were $155.0A million and $156.3A million at December 31, 2024 and September 30, 2024, respectively. A Contract Assets. Contract assets represent rights to consideration in
exchange for products or services that have been transferred by the Company and payment is conditional on something other than the passage of time. These amounts typically relate to
contracts where the right to invoice the customer is not present until completion of the contract or the achievement of specified milestones and the value of the products or services transferred
exceed this constraint. Contract assets are classified as current as they are expected to convert to cash within one year. Contract asset balances which are included within &€cePrepaid expenses
and other current assetsa€ in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet, were $34.3A million and $28.9A million at December 31, 2024 andA September 30, 2024, respectively. Revenue of
$9.2A million recognized during the three months endedA December 31, 2024 and $9.1A million recognized during the three months ended December 31, 2023A contributed to the contract
asset balances at December 31, 2024 and September 30, 2024. A Contract Liabilities. Contract liabilities represent the Companya€™s obligation to transfer products or services to a customer
for which consideration has been received, or for which an amount of consideration is due from the customer. Contract assets and liabilities are reported on a net basis at the contract level,
depending on the contracta€™ s position at the end of each reporting period. Contract liabilities are included within &€ceDeferred revenuea€ in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet.
Contract liabilities were $41.8A million and $30.5A million at December 31, 2024 andA September 30, 2024, respectively. The Company recognized revenues of $14.4 million and $21. 6A million
in the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, that were included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of each period. A 20 Table of Contents A Remaining
Performance Obligations. Remaining performance obligations represent the transaction price of unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations within contracts with an original
expected contract term that is greater than one year and for which fulfillment of the contract has started as of the end of the reporting period. The aggregate amount of transaction
consideration allocated to remaining performance obligations as of December 31, 2024 was $84.6A million. The following table summarizes when the Company expects to recognize the
remaining performance obligations as revenue; the Company will recognize revenue associated with these performance obligations as transfer of control occurs (in thousands): A &€<A Asof
December 31, 2024 A 4€< A Less than 1 Year A A Greater than 1 Year A A Total A Remaining performance obligations A $54,503A A $30,053A A $84,556A A A 11. Stock-Based
Compensation A In accordance with the Company's 2020 Equity Incentive Plan, the Company may issue to eligible employees options to purchase shares of the Companya€™s common stock,
restricted stock units and other equity incentives, which vest upon the satisfaction of a performance condition and/or a service condition. In addition, the Company issues common stock to
participating employees pursuant to an employee stock purchase plan, and may issue common stock awards and deferred restricted stock units to members of its Board of Directors in
accordance with its Board of Director compensation program. A 2020 Equity Incentive Plan A The following table reflects the total stock-based compensation expense for continuing operations
recorded during the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands): A 4€< A Three Months Ended December 31, A 4€< A 2024 A A 2023 A Restricted stock units

A $4,615A A $2,649A Employee stock purchase plan A A 257A A A 352A Total stock-based compensation expense A $4,872A A $3,001A A The Company recorded $0.2 million ofA stock-based
compensation expense for discontinued operations during each of theA three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.A A Restricted Stock Unit Activity A The following table summarizes
restricted stock unit activity for the three months ended December 31, 2024: A a€<A a€<A A Weighted A 4€<A a€<A A Average A a€<A a€<A A Grant-Date A 4€< A Shares A A Fair Value
A Outstanding as of September 30, 2024 A A 764,111A A $59.65A Granted A A 519,862A A $47.14A Vested A A (121,804)A $61.96A Forfeited A A (59,923)A $94.75A Outstanding as of
December 31, 2024 A A 1,102,246A A $51.21A A Awards vested during theA three months ended December 31, 2024A per the table above include 9,209 shares from discontinued
operations.A The fair value of restricted stock units vested during the three months ended December 31, 2024A and 2023A was $4.7A million andA $7.2A million, respectively, for continuing
operations. A As of December 31, 2024, the future unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to restricted stock units for continuing operations expected to vest is $34. 8A million
and is expected to be recognized over an estimated weighted average amortization period of 1.9A years. A 21 Table of Contents A Restricted stock units granted with performance goals may
also have a required service period following the achievement of all or a portion of the performance goals. The following table reflects restricted stock units granted during the three months
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023:A 4€< A Three Months Ended December 31, A 4€<A 2024 A A 2023 A Time-based restricted stock units A A 364,173A A A 199,316A Performance-based
restricted stock units A A 155,689A A A 388,532A Total units A A 519,862A A A 587,848A A Restricted stock unitsA granted during the three months ended December 31, 2023 per the table
above include 31,475 unitsA forA discontinued operations. All restricted stock units granted duringA theA three months ended December 31, 2024A per the table above are for continuing
operations. A Time-Based Restricted Stock Unit Grants A Restricted stock units granted with a required service period typically haveA three-yearA vesting schedules in whichA one-thirdA of
awards vest at each annual anniversary of grant date, subject to the award holders meeting service requirements. A Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Grants A Performance-based
restricted stock units are earned based on the achievement of performance criteria established by the Human Resources and Compensation Committee and approved by the Company's Board of
Directors. The criteria for performance-based awards are weighted and have threshold, target, and maximum performance goals.A A Performance-based restricted stock unit awards granted
allow participants to earnA 100% of restricted stock units if the Companya€™s performance meets or exceeds its target goal for each applicable financial metric, and up to a maximum ofA 200%
if the Companya€™ s performance for such metrics meets or exceeds the maximum or stretch goal. Performance below the minimum threshold for each financial metric results in award
forfeiture. Performance goals are measured over aA three-yearA period for each yeara€™s restricted stock unit awards and at the end of the period to determine the number of restricted stock
units earned, if any, by recipients who continue to meet the service requirement. Upon the third anniversary of each yeara€™ s restricted stock unit awardsa€™ grant date, the Companya€™s
Board of Directors approves the number of restricted stock units earned for participants who continue to meet the service requirements on the vesting date.A For restricted stock unit awards
that include vesting based on performance conditions, the fair values are estimated based on the intrinsic values of the awards at the grant date. A In November 2024, the Company issued
restricted stock unit awards with vesting based on market conditions, which will vest based on achievement of the Company'sA relative total shareholder return against the defined peer
groupA over a three-year period. The fair values for those grants that include vesting based on market conditions are estimated using the Monte Carlo simulation model.A The key assumptions
used in the Monte Carlo simulation included (i) the expected volatility based on the three-year daily historical volatility as measured on the grant date, (ii) risk-free interest rate based on U.S.
Treasury constant maturities yieldsA as of the grant date, (iii) correlation assumption based on daily share price changes over three years between the Company and the peer companies
measured on the grant date, and (iv)A no expected dividend yield. A In October 2023, the Companya€™s Board of Directors approved an amendment to the performance goals associated with
the previously issued performance-based restricted stock units for all impacted employees, excluding members of the executive team. The performance goals, as amended, are more reflective of
the current macroeconomic environment and consideration toward employee retention in the competitive life sciences industry. Before the amendment, the original performance goals were not
expected to be satisfied. Subsequent to the amendment, vesting became probable based on the forecasted achievement of the amended performance goals. The amendment of these restricted
stock units is treated as a modification with the total potential maximum compensation cost of $3.8A million recognized over the service period through November 2025. The Company recorded
expense of $0.6A million inA the three months ended December 31, 2024A related to the modified awards.A a4€< A 12. Fair Value Measurements A See Note 2, Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies in the notes to the audited consolidated financial statements included in the section titled &€ceFinancial Statements and Supplementary Dataa€ in Part II, Item 8 of the
2024A Annual Report on Form 10-K for information on the fair value hierarchy and the level of inputs used by the Company in determining fair value. A 22 Table of Contents A Financial Assets
and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis A The following tables summarize assets and liabilities measured and recorded at fair value on a recurring basis in the Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2024 andA September 30, 2024 (in thousands): A &€<A As of December 31, 2024 A Description A Total Fair Value AA Level 1 AA Level 2
AA Level 3A Assets: AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Cash equivalents A $207,170A A $200,395A A $6,775A A $a€”A Available-for-sale securities

AA113,384A A A 14,999A A A 98,385A A A 4€”A Investment in equity securities A A 2,100A A A 4€”"A A A 4€”A A A 2,100A Foreign exchange contracts AA 35A A A a€”A AA 35A AA a€"A

Net investment hedge A A3,497A A A a€”A A A 3,497A A A a€”A Total assets A $326 186A A $215,394A A $108 692A A $2,100A Liabilities: AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Foreign exchange

contracts A A 122A A A a€”A A A 122A A A 4€”A Total liabilities A $122A A $a€"A A $122A A $a€”A A a€<A Asof September 30, 2024 A Description A Total Fair Value AA Level 1 AA Level

2AA Level 3A Assets: AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Cash equivalents A $157 990A A $1 57,990A A $a€"A A $a€”A Available-for-sale securities

AA198,616AAA37,584A A A 161,032A A A 4€”A Convertible debt securities A A 2,000A A A 4€”A A A a€”A A A 2,000A Foreign exchange contracts AA9AAAa€”AAA9AAAaE”A Total
assets A $358,615A A $195,574A A $161,041A A $2,000A Liabilities: AAAAAAA AAAAAAAAA Netinvestment hedge AA 1,915A AA 4€”A A A 1,915A A A 4€”A Foreign exchange
contracts A A 213A A $a€”A A $213A A $a€”A Total liabilities A $2,128A A $a€”A A $2,128A A $4€”A A Cash Equivalents A The Company considers all highly liquid interest-earning
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents primarily consist of money market funds and U.S. government backed
securities with a maturity of three months or less. They are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy because they are valued using quoted market prices in active markets. The fair
values of these investments approximate their carrying values. Investments classified as Level 2 consist of debt securities valued using matrix pricing benchmarking because they are not
actively traded and bank certificates of deposit with a maturity of three months or less. Matrix pricing is a mathematical technique used to value securities by relying on the securitiesa€™
relationship to other benchmark quoted prices. A Available-For-Sale Securities A Available-for-sale securities primarily consist of highly rated corporate debt securities, and U.S. government
backed securities, which are classified as Level 1. Investments classified as Level 2 consist of debt securities that are valued using matrix pricing and benchmarking because they are not
actively traded, and bank certificates of deposit.A A 23 Table of Contents A Convertible Debt Securities and Investment in Equity Securities A In the third quarter of fiscal year 2024, the
Company purchased $2.0 million principal amount of convertible notes issued by a private company. The Company accounted for the investment in convertible notes at fair value with changes
in fair value recognized in the income statement. As of the conversion date, the fair value of the convertible notes was $2.1 million. A During the first quarter of fiscal year 2025, the Company
converted theA convertible notesA into 420,000 shares of preferred stock of the private company. The conversion did not result in the recognition of additional gain or loss on the convertible
notes. The shares of preferred stock are equity securities and within the scope of ASC 321, Investments - Equity Securities. The Company elected the measurement alternative for its investment
in the shares of preferred stock ofA the private companyA because the shares of preferred stock do notA have a readily determinable fair value. As of December 31, 2024, the carrying value of
the investment in the shares of preferred stock of the private companyA was $2.1A million and is included in &€ceOther assetsa€ on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. The
CompanyA performs a qualitative assessment of whether the investment is impaired at each reporting date and will reduce the carrying value accordingly when an impairment is

identified.A The fair value determination is based on unobservable inputs (LevelA 3A on the fair value hierarchy) which were based on the best information available in the circumstance,
including transaction pricing, recent acquisition, and market participant assumptions. The unobservable inputs used in the determination of the fair value of assets classified as LevelA 3A have
an inherent measurement uncertainty that if changed could result in higher or lower fair value measurements of the assets as of the reporting date. A Foreign Exchange Contracts & Net
Investment Hedge A The Company4€™s foreign exchange contract assets and liabilities, and its net investment hedge assets are measured and reported at fair value using the market method
valuation technique. The inputs to this technique utilize current foreign currency exchange forward market rates published by third-party leading financial news and data providers. These are
observable data that represent the rates that the financial institution uses for contracts entered into at that date; however, they are not based on actual transactions, so they are classified as
Level 2. A Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis A During the three months ended December 31, 2024A and 2023, the Company did not record any
material other-than-temporary impairments on financial assets required to be measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. A 24 Table of Contents A A 13. Income Taxes A The Company
recorded an income tax benefitA of $3.6A millionA during the three months ended December 31, 2024. The tax benefit forA the three months ended December 31, 2024A was primarily driven
byA the profits in foreign jurisdictions and current state income taxes in jurisdictions where the Company does not have a net operating loss carryover. Additionally, tax expense is generated on
a global loss because the U.S. tax loss is not being benefited due to a valuation allowance against U.S. deferred tax assets. A The Company recorded an income tax expenseA of

$1.4A millionA during theA three months ended December 31, 2023. The tax expense for the three months endedA December 31, 2023A was primarily driven by the pre-tax income from foreign
operations during the period, a $0.5A million stock compensation shortfall expense for tax deductions that are lower than the associated book compensation expense, and a $0.6A million
expense related to a valuation allowance on beginning of year U.S. state deferred tax assets. A A A The Company evaluates the realizability of its deferred tax assets and assesses the need for
a valuation allowance on a quarterly basis. The Company operates in numerous countries under many legal forms and, as a result, is subject to the jurisdiction of numerous domestic and foreign
tax authorities. The CompanyA evaluates the profitability of itsA operations in each jurisdiction on a historic cumulative basis and on a forward-looking basis, while carefully considering carry-
forward periods of tax attributesA and ongoing tax planning strategies in assessing the need for the valuation allowance. A The Company has generated U.S. pre-tax losses in recent years and
provided a valuation allowance against U.S. deferred tax assets during fiscal year 2024. The Company expects to generate a U.S. book loss during fiscal year 2025 and expects a valuation
allowance of $11.9 million in the United States against its U.S. net deferred tax assets for fiscal year 2025. A The Company also maintains a valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets
on certain foreign tax-paying components. A The Company has not provided deferred income taxes on the outside basis difference of any foreign subsidiary and maintains its general assertion
of indefinite reinvestment regarding those subsidiaries and the remaining earnings of its German subsidiary as of December 31, 2024. A The Company maintains liabilities for unrecognized tax
benefits based on its estimates and assumptions. The Company recognizes interest related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of the income tax provision or benefit. The Company



recognized minimal interest expense related to its unrecognized tax benefits during the threeA months ended December 31,A 2024. A The Company is subject to U.S. federal, state, local and
foreign income taxes in various jurisdictions. The amount of income taxes paid is subject to the Companya€™s interpretation of applicable tax laws in the jurisdictions in which it files. A In the
normal course of business, the Company is subject to income tax audits in various global jurisdictions in which it operates. The years subject to examination vary for the United States and
international jurisdictions, with the earliest tax year being 2018. Based on the outcome of these examinations or the expiration of statutes of limitations for specific jurisdictions, it is reasonably
possible that the related unrecognized tax benefits could change from those recorded in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company currently anticipates that it is reasonably
possible that the unrecognized tax benefits and accrued interest on those benefits will not be reduced in the next twelve months due to the statute of limitations expirations. These unrecognized
tax benefits would impact the effective tax rate if recognized. A 25 Table of Contents A A 14. Net Loss per Share A The calculations of basic and diluted net loss per share and basic and
diluted weighted average shares outstanding are as follows for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands, except per share data): A &€<A Three Months Ended A a€«<
A December 31, A a€<A 2024 AA 2023 A Loss from continuing operations A $(9,421)A $(7,192) Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax A A (3, 919)A A (8,532) Net loss

A A (13,340)A A (15, 724) €A a€< AA a€< A Weighted average common shares outstandmg used in computmg basic loss per share A A 45,626A A A 56,709A We1ghted average common

A $(0.21)A $(0.13) Loss from discontinued operatmns net of tax A A (0.09)A A (0 15) Basic net loss per share A $(0.29)A $(0.28) a€« A a€<A A a€<A Diluted net loss per share: AAAAAAAA
Loss from continuing operations A $(0.21)A $(0.13) Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax A A (0.09)A A (0.15) Diluted net loss per share A $(0.29)A $(0.28) A As a result of i incurring a
net loss from continuing operations for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, outstanding restricted stock units and shares issued by the Company under the employee stock
purchase plan were excluded from the computation of diluted loss per share as their effect would be antidilutive to earnings per share for continuing operations based on the treasury stock
method. The following table contains all potentially dilutive common stock equivalents for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. A A Three Months Ended December 31, A A
2024 A 2023 Time-based restricted stock units A 87,117 A 62,983 Performance-based restricted stock units A 4€” A 23,671 Employee stock purchase plan A 4€” A 6,451 AA 87,117 A
93,105 A A 15. Segment and Geographic Information A Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise that engage in business activities for which discrete financial
information is available and regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (4€ceCODMAa€) in deciding how to allocate resources and to assess performance. The Companya€™s Chief
Executive Officer is the Companya€™s CODM. A As of November 12, 2024, the Companya€™s B Medical Systems segmentA met the &€ceheld for salea€ criteria and a€cediscontinued
operations&€ criteria in accordance with FASB ASC 205 and the results of the B Medical Systems segment are included within discontinued operations.A A The Company&€™s continuing
operations includes the following operating and reportable segments: A 4€< A &— Sample Management Solutions. The SMS business resources operateA as a single business unit offering end-
to-end sample management products and services, mcludlng Sample Repository Services and Core Products (Automated Stores, Cryogenic Systems, Automated Sample Tube, Consumables and
Instruments and Controlled Rate Thawing Devices). A 4— Multiomics. The Multiomics business resources operate asA a single business unit offering genomic and other sample analysis
services, including gene sequencing and gene synthesis. A 4€< 26 Table of Contents A Management considers adjusted operating income (loss), which excludes charges related to amortization
of intangible assets, transformation costs, restructuring charges, goodwill and intangible asset impairment,A merger and acquisition costs and costs related to share repurchase, governance-
related matters, and other unallocated corporate expenses, as the primary performance metric when evaluatmg eachA segmenta€ s operatlons The following is the summary of the financial

A ae<AA aecA Adjusted operatmg income (loss): A a€<A A a€<A Sample Management Solutions A $2, 317A A $(616) Multlomlcs AA(2, 503)A A (3,263) Segment adJusted operatmg loss

A A (186)A A (3,879) 4€< A 4€<A A a4€<A Amortization of completed technology A A1,500A AA1,856A Amortization of intangible assets other than completed technology

A A4,573A AA5,371A Transformation costs (1) A A 3,046A A A 41A ‘Restructuring charges AA 431A A A 786A Merger and acquisition costs and costs related to share repurchase (2)

A A1,570A A A 4,321A Other unallocated corporate expenses A A47A A A (9) Total operating loss A A (11,353)A A (16,245) Interest income, net A A 4,298A A A 9,955A Other income, net

A A1,203A AA518A Loss before income taxes A $(5,852)A $(5,772) A (1) Transformation costs represent non-recurring expenses for strategic projects with anticipated long-term benefits to
the Company focused on cost reduction and productivity improvement that do not meet the definition of restructuring charges. These costs are directed at simplifying, standardizing,
streamlining, and optimizing the Companya€™s operations, processes and systems to permanently alter the Companya€™s operations for the long term. For a project to be considered
transformational, successful completion of the project must be expected to bring long-term material benefits to the organization and involve significant changes to process and/or underlying
technology. Transformation costs in the period result from actions taken as part of the Companya€™s 2024 transformation planA and primarily relate to one time asset write downs associated
with changes in technology, one time inventory write downs relating to restructuring actions taken in the period, and third-party consulting costs associated with process andA systems re-
design. (2) Includes expenses related to governance-related matters. A a€< The following is the summary of the asset information for the Companya€™s reportable segments as of December 31,
2024 andA September 30, 2024 (in thousands) A Assets: A December 31, 2024 A A Septemher 30, 2024 A Sample Management Solutions A $840,580A A $859,353A Multiomics

A A 454,958A A A 462,825A Total assets A $1,295,538A A $1,322,178A A 27 Table of Contents A The following is a reconciliation of the segment assets to the corresponding amounts
presented in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2024 andA September 30, 2024 (in thousands): A 4€< A December 31, AA September 30, A a€<A 2024 A A
2024 A Segment assets A $1,295,538A A $1,322,178A Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and marketable securities A A 501,277A A A 490,707A Deferred tax assets

A A627A A A 837A General corporate assets A A 12,591A A A 23,631A Assets held for sale A A 231,177A A A 262,688A Total assets A $2,041,210A A $2,100,041A A Revenue from external
customers is attributed to geographic areas based on locations in which the product is shipped. Net revenue by geographic area for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as
follows (in thousands): A 4€< A Three Months Ended December 31, A a€<A 2024 A A 2023 A Geographlc Location: A 46<A A &4€<A United States A $93,469A A $90 127A China
AA14,888A A A14,898A United Kingdom A A 7,798A A A 5,676A Rest of Europe A A 24,319A A A 22,731A Asia Pacific/Other A A 7,036A A A 8,293A Total revenue A $147,510A A $141,725A
A For theA three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company did not have anyA individual customers that accounted for 10% or more of its consolidated revenue.A As ofA
December 31, 2024, one customer within the SMS segmentA accounted for 12% of the Companya€™s accounts receivable balance. As of September 30, 2024, there wereA no customers that
accounted for more than 10% of the Company's accountsA receivable balance. A 16. Commitments and Contingencies A Contingencies A The Company is subject to various legal proceedings,
both asserted and unasserted, that arise in the ordinary course of business. The Company cannot predict the ultimate outcome of such legal proceedings or, in certain instances, provide
reasonable ranges of potential losses. The CompanyA considers all claims on a quarterly basis and based on known facts assesses whether potential losses are considered reasonably possible,
probable, and estimable. Based upon this assessment, the CompanyA then evaluates disclosure requirements and whether to accrue for such claims in the Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements.A At December 31, 2024A and as of the date of filing of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, the CompanyA believes that, other than theA claims related

toA Edwards disclosed in Note 3,A Discontinued Operations, no material provision for liability nor disclosure is required related to any claims.A In the event of unexpected subsequent
developments and given the inherent unpredictability of these matters, there can be no assurance that the Companya€™s assessment of any claim will reflect the ultimate outcome, and an
adverse outcome in certain matters could, from time to time, have a material adverse effect on the Companya€™s consolidated financial position or results of operations in particular quarterly
or annual periods. A Tariff Matter A With the assistance of aA third-party consultant, during theA firstA quarter of fiscal yearA 2021,A the Company initiated a review of the value of
transactions it used for intercompany imports into the U. S. from its GENEWIZ business.A As a result of this review and an interpretation surrounding the valuation method used to calculate the
estimated transaction value, the Company revised its estimate of the tariffs owed and paid $5. 9A million to U.S. customs authorities in fiscal yearA 2022A related toA transactions prior toA
December 2021.A InA July 2024,A the CompanyA paid approximately $2.5A million in tariffsA as well as interest related to the imports from its GENEWIZ business into the U.S. during the
period from December 2021A toA July 2024.A As of December 31, 2024,A the CompanyA doesA notA anticipate any penalties associated with this payment because its valuation methodology
was accepted by U.S. customs authoritiesA duringA previous voluntary disclosures. It is expected that U.S. customs authorities willA issue the final audit results for these periods in the third
quarter of fiscal year 2025. A Purchase Commitments A As of December 31, 2024, the Company had non-cancellable commitments of $50.1A million, comprised of purchase orders for
inventory of $36.0A million and other operating expenseA commitments of $14.1A million. A 28 Table of Contents A A ItemA 2. Management&€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations A You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations together with our unaudited interim condensed
consolidated financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and the audited financial statements and related notes contained in the
a€0e2024A Annual Report on Form 10-K4€. In addition to historical information, this discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and
assumptions. Our actual results may differ materially from those discussed below and in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to these differences include,
without limitation, those discussed in this Managementa€™ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations or 4€0eMD&AAE,A as well as those described in the
2024A Annual Report on Form 10-K and this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q under a€celnformation Related to Forward-Looking Statementsa€, Part I, Item 1A a€ceRisk Factorsa€ in the 2024
Annual Report on Form 10-K and Part II, Item 1A d4€ceRisk Factorsa€ in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. All dollar amounts in the below MD&A are presented in U.S. dollars, unless
otherwise noted or the context otherwise provides. A Our MD&A is organized as follows: A A 4— Overview. This section provides a general description of our business and operating segments
as well as a brief discussion and overall analysis of our business and financial performance, including key developments affecting us during the three months ended December 31, 2024 and
2023. A A a— Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates. This section discusses accounting policies and estimates that require us to exercise subjective or complex judgments in their
application. We believe these accounting policies and estimates are important to understanding the assumptions and judgments incorporated in our reported financial results. A A 4— Results
of Operations. This section provides an analysis of our financial results for the three months ended December 31, 2024 compared to the three months ended December 31, 2023. A A a—
Liquidity and Capital Resources. This section provides an analysis of our liquidity and changes in cash flows as well as a discussion of contractual commitments. A Plan to Sell B Medical
Systems Business A During the first quarter of fiscal year 2025, the CompanyA announced that it is pursuing a sale of its B Medical Systems business, a manufacturer and global distributor of
medical refrigeration devices based in Luxembourg. This strategic action is intended to simplify the Companya€™s portfolio and allow management to focus on driving revenue growth and
profitability in its core Sample Management Solutions and Multiomics segments. The B Medical SystemsA segment has been classified as held-for-sale and a discontinued operation under
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States, or GAAP. Unless otherwise noted, this MD&A relates solely to our continuing operations and excludesA the operations of our B
Medical Systems business. A OVERVIEW A We are a leading global provider of biological and chemical compound sample exploration and management solutions for the life sciences industry.
We entered the life sciences market in 2011, leveraging our in-house precision automation and cryogenics capabilities that we were then applying in the semiconductor manufacturing market.
This led us to develop solutions for automated ultra-cold storage.A Since then, we have expanded our life sciences offerings through internal investments and through a series of acquisitions.
We support our customers from research and clinical development to commercialization with our sample management andA automated storage, as well asA genomic services expertise to help
our customers bring impactful therapies to market faster. We understand the importance of sample integrity and offer a broad portfolio of products and services supporting customers at every
stage of the life cycle of samples including procurement, automated storage systems,A genomic services and a multitude of sample consumables, informatics and data software, along with
sample repository services. Our expertise, global footprint and leadership positions enable usA to be aA trusted global partner to pharmaceutical, biotechnology and life sciences research
institutions. In total, we employ approximately 3,000 full-time employees, part-time employees and contingent workers worldwide as of December 31, 2024 and have sales in approximately
80A countries. We are headquartered in Burlington, Massachusetts and have operations in North America, Asia, and Europe. A Our portfolio includes product and service offerings developed
by us internally, as well as acquired through acquisitions, designed to provide comprehensive capabilities to our customers, addressing their needs in sample exploration and management,
automated storageA and multiomics. We continue to develop new product and service offerings and enhance existing and acquired offerings through the expertise of our research and
development resources. We believe our acquisition, investment and integration approach has allowed us to accelerate internal development and significantly accelerate time to market for our
life sciences solutions. A 29 Table of Contents A Segments A Within our Sample Management Solutions segment, we operate as a single business unit offering end-to-end sample management
products and services, including: Sample Repository Services and Core Products (Automated Stores, Cryogenic Systems, Automated Sample Tube, Consumables and Instruments and Controlled
Rate Thawing Devices). This portfolio provides customers with a high level of sample quality, security, availability, intelligence and integrity throughout the lifecycle of samples, providing
customers with complete end-to-end &€cecold chain of custodya€ capabilities. We also offer expert-level consultation services to our clients throughout their experimental design and
implementation processes. A Within our Multiomics segment, our genomicA services business advances research and development activities by providing gene sequencing, synthesis, editing
and related services. We offer a comprehensive, global portfolio that we believe has both broad appeal in the life sciences industry and enables customers to select the best solution for their
research and development challenges.A This portfolio also offers unique solutions for key markets such as cell and gene therapy, antibody development and biomarker discovery by addressing
genomic complexity and throughput challenges. A Business and Financial Performance A Basis of Presentation A Our condensed consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with GAAP. A Financial Performance A Our performance for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows: A a€<A Three Months Ended December 31, A In thousands A
2024 A A 2023 A Revenue A $147,510 A A $141,725 A Cost of revenue A A 78,839 A A A 79,982 A Gross pr0f1tA A 68,671 A A A 61,743 A Operating expensesA a€<A A a€<A
Research and development A A 6380A A A 7,313A Selling, general and administrative A A 73,213A A A 69,889 A Restructuring charges A A 431 A A A 786 A Total operating
expenses A A 80,024 A A A 77,988 A Operatmg loss A A (11 353 )A A (16,245 ) Other income A a€<A A a€<A Interest income, net A A 4,298 A A A 9,955 A Other income, net A A
1,203 A A A 518 A Loss before income taxes A A (5 852)A A (5,772 ) Income tax expense A A 3569A A A 1,420 A Loss from continuing operations A A (9,421 )A A (7,192) Loss from
discontinued operations, net of tax A A (3,919)A A (8,532 ) Netloss A $ (13,340 ) A $ (15,724 ) A Three months ended December 31, 2024 compared to three months ended December 31,
2023 A RevenueA increasedA 4% for the three months ended December 31, 2024 compared to the corresponding period in the prior fiscal year, driven by revenue growthA in both our
Multiomics andA Sample Management Solutions segments. A In Multiomics, revenue increased in Next Generation Sequencing andA Gene Synthesis services, partially offset by a decline in
Sanger sequencing. A In Sample Management Solutions, A revenue increased in SampleA RepositoryA SolutionsA andA CoreA Products,A particularlyA inA ConsumablesA and

InstrumentsA andA ClinicalA andA CryogenicA StoresA Systems. Gross margin was 47%A for the three months ended December 31, 2024 compared to 44%A for the corresponding period in the
prior fiscal year, driven byA higher revenues and margin expansion across the business, particularly in ourA Sample Management Solutions segment, mostly driven by operational efficiencies,
sales mix, and the impact of certain non-recurring items recorded in the correspondingA period in the prior fiscal year. Operating expenses increasedA during the three months ended December
31, 2024 compared to the corresponding period in the prior fiscal yearA driven by higherA selling, general and administrative expenses, partially offset by lower research and development
expense and lower restructuring charges. We generated aA loss from continuing operationsA ofA $9.4A million for the three months ended December 31, 2024A compared toA loss from
continuing operations ofA $7.2A million for theA corresponding period in the prior fiscal year, primarily driven byA lowerA interest income and higher income tax expense, partially offset by
higher revenue and operational efficiencies.A We generatedA a net lossA of $13.3A million for the three months ended December 31, 2024 compared toA a net lossA of $15.7A million for the
three months ended December 31, 2023, primarily due to decreased loss from discontinued operationsA offsetting the increased loss from continuing operations. A 30 Table of Contents A



CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES A The preparation of the interim condensed consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates based on historical
experience and consider various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. We evaluate current and anticipated worldwide economic conditions, both in
general and specifically in relation to the life sciences industry, that serve as a basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily determinable
based on information from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions that could have a material impact on our financial condition
and results of operations. A The critical accounting estimates that we believe affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our condensed consolidated
financial statements presented in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are described underA Critical Accounting Policies Estimates included in the section titled &€ceManagementa€™s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations&€ in Part II, Item 7 of the 2024A Annual Report on FormA 10-K. There have been no material changes to our critical
accounting policies or estimates from those set forth in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. A A RESULTS OF OPERATIONS A Please refer to the commentary provided below for further
discussion and analysis of the factors contributing to our results from operations for the three months ended December 31, 2024 compared to the three months ended December 31, 2023. A
Non-GAAP Financial Measures A Non-GAAP financial measures are used in addition to and in conjunction with results presented in accordance with GAAP and should not be relied upon to the
exclusion of GAAP financial measures. Management adjusts the GAAP results for the impact of amortization of intangible assets, transformation costs, restructuring charges, governance-related
matters, merger and acquisition costs and costs related to share repurchase, and other unallocated corporate expenses to provide investors better perspective on the results of operations which
the Company believes is more comparable to the similar analysis provided by its peers.A Management also excludes special charges and gains, such as gains and losses from the sale of assets,
certain tax benefits and charges, as well as other gains and charges that are not representative of the normal operations of the business. Management strongly encourages investors to review
our financial statements and publicly filed reports in their entirety and not rely on any single measure. A reconciliation of non-GAAP measures to the most nearly comparable GAAP measures is
included under 4€ceOperating Income (Loss)a€ and a€ceGross Margma€ below. A Revenue A Our revenue performance for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows:
A a€<A Three Months Ended December 31, A 4€<A a€<A A a€<A A % Change A In thousands, except percentages A 2024 A A 2023 A A 2024 v.2023 A Sample Management Solutions
A $81,213A A $79,006 A A A 2.8% Multiomics A A 66,297 A A A 62,720A A A 5.7 % Total revenue A $ 147,510 A A $ 141,725A A A 4.1 % A Three months ended December 31,
2024 compared to three months ended December 31, 2023 A 4€< Our Multiomics segment revenue for the three months ended December 31, 2024A increasedA 6%A compared to the
corresponding prior fiscal year period driven by revenue growth in Next Generation Sequencing and Gene Synthesis services, partially offset by a decline in Sanger sequencing services. A 31
Table of Contents A Our Sample Management Solutions segment revenue for the three months ended December 31, 2024A increased 3%A compared to the corresponding prior fiscal year
period driven by revenue growth in both Sample Repository Services and Core Products businesses, A particularlyA inA ConsumablesA and
InstrumentsA andA ClinicalA andA Cryogech StoresA Systems. A Revenue generated outside the United States was $54. 0A million, or 37% of total revenue, for the three months ended
December 31, 2024 compared to $51.6A million, or 36% of total revenue, for the corresponding period in the prior fiscalA year. A Operating Income (Loss) A Our operating income (loss)
performance for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows (in thousands, except percentages): A a€<A Three Months Ended December 31, A a€<A Sample_
Management Solutions A A Multlomlcs A 4€<A 2024 A A 2023 A A 2024 A A 2023 A Revenue: A $ 81,213 A A $79,006 A A $66,297 A A $62,720A a€<A a€<A A a€<A A a€<A A
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A€ A _Operating income (loss): A &€« A A a€<A A ae<A A ae<A Operating income (loss) A $1,562 A A $ (1,483 )A $ (3,387 ) A $ (4,302 ) Amortization of completed technoloAgyA AA 6.

A AABI6A AAB81AAAI, 039A Amortization of other lntanglblesA A 13A A AS51AAA a”A A A 4€” A Transformation costs(1) A A 103A A A a€”A A A a€” A A A a€”
A Restructuring chargesA A ae”A A A ae”A A A 23A A A a€” A Total adjusted operating income (loss) A $2317A A $(616)A $(2,503)A $(3,263) Operating marglnA A19%
AA Q@9 )% A A (B.1)%A A (6. 9 )% Adjusted operating margin AA29%A A (0.8 )% A A (3.8)%A A (5.2)%A a€<A Three Months Ended December 31, A a€< A SegmentA A

CorporateA A Azenta Total A 4€<A 2024 A A 2023 A A 2024 A A 2023 A A 2024 A A 2023 A Revenue: A $147, 510A A $ 141, 725A A $a€”A A $a€”A A $147510A A $
141,725 A a€<A a€<A A 4€<A A a€<A A 4€<A A a€<A A a€A Operating income (loss) A a€<A A a€<A A ae<A A a€<A A a€A A aeA Operatmg loss A $ (1,825) A $(5,785) A

$(9,528)A $ (10,460 )AA $(11,353) As (16,245 ) Amortization of completed technologyA A 1,500A A A 1,85A A A a€”AAA1AAA 1,500A A A 1,856 A Amortization of other
intangibles A A 13A A A51AAA 4,SGQA A A 5320A A A 4573A A A 5371A TranSfOrmathnCOStS(l)A A 103A A A a€”A A A 2,943A A A 41A A A 3,046 A A A 41A
Restructuring charges A A23AAAae”AA

A A 408A A A 786A A A 431A A A 786A ‘Merger and acquisition costs and costs related to share repurchase(2) A A ae”AAAae”"AA
A 21 A Other adJustments AAae”AAAa€e"AAAIAAAQ)AA9AAA 1) Total adjusted operating income (loss) A $(186) As
(3879)A $(38)A $8A A $(224)A $(3,871) Operating marginA A (1.2)%A A (4.1)%A A a6<A A A 4€<A A A (7.7)% A A (11.5)% Adjusted operating margin A A (0.1)% A A
2.7)% A A a€<A A A a6<A A A (0.2)% A A (2.7)% A (1) Transformation costs represent non-recurring expenses for strategic projects with anticipated long-term benefits to the Company
focused on cost reduction and productivity improvement that do not meet the definition of restructuring charges. These costs are directed at simplifying, standardizing, streamlining, and
optimizing the Companya€™ s operations, processes and systems to permanently alter the Companya€™ s operations for the long term. For a project to be considered transformational,
successful completion of the project must be expected to bring long-term material benefits to the organization and involve significant changes to process and/or underlying technology.
Transformation costs in the period result from actions taken as part of the Companya€™s 2024 transformation planA and primarily relate to one time asset write downs associated with changes
in technology, one time inventory write downs relating to restructuring actions taken in the period, and third-party consulting costs associated with process and systems re-design. (2) Includes
expenses related to governance-related matters. A &€« 32 Table of Contents A Three months ended December 31, 2024 compared to three months ended December 31, 2023 A Operating
incomeA for the Sample Management Solutions segment was $1.6 million for the three months ended December 31, 2024 compared to an operating lossA of $1.5A million in the corresponding
period in the prior fiscal year. The Sample Management Solutions segment operating margin was 1.9%,A an increase of 380A basis points for the three months ended December 31, 2024
compared to the corresponding period in the prior fiscal year. The increase in operating income and operating margin were primarily driven by higher revenue and margin expansion, partially
offset by increased operating expenses. Adjusted operating incomeA was $2.3 million for the three months ended December 31, 2024 compared toA adjusted operating lossA of $0.6 million in
the corresponding period in the prior fiscal year. Adjusted operating margin was 2.9%,A an increase of 363A basis points for the three months ended December 31, 2024 compared to the
corresponding period in the prior fiscal year.A Adjusted operating income and margin exclude the impact of amortization of intangible assets of $0.7 millionA and $0.9 million for the three
months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and transformation costsA of $0.1A million for the three months ended December 31, 2024. A Operating lossA for the Multiomics
segment was $3.4A million for the three months ended December 31, 2024 compared toA an operating loss of $4.3A million in the corresponding period in the prior fiscal year. The Multiomics
segment operating margin was (5.1)%,A an increase of 175A basis points for the three months ended December 31, 2024 compared to the corresponding period in the prior fiscal year. The
decrease in operating loss and increase in operating margin were primarily driven by higher revenue and gross profit, supported by operational efficiency.A Adjusted operating lossA was

$2.5A million for the three months ended December 31, 2024 compared toA adjusted operating loss of $3.3A million in the corresponding period of the prior fiscal year. Adjusted operating
margin was (3.8)%, an increaseA of 143A basis points for the three months ended December 31, 2024 compared to the corresponding period in the prior fiscal year. Adjusted operating loss and
margin exclude the impact of amortization related to completed technology of $0.9A million and $1.0A million for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. A A Gross
Margm A Our gross margin performance for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows (in thousands, except percentages): A a€<A Three Months Ended December R
31, A 4€<A Sample Management Solutions A A Multiomics A A Azenta Total A 4€<A 2024 A A 2023 A A 2024 A A 2023 A A 2024 A A 2023 A Revenue A $ 81,213 A A $79,005A A
$66297A A $62,720A A $147,510A A $ 141, 725 A a€<A a€<A A a€<A A a€<A A a€<A A a4€<A A a€<A Gross profit A $ 38,114 A A $33,272A A $30,557A A $28471A A
68,671 A A $ 61,743 A Adjustments: A 4€<A A A A A A a6<A A A A A A a6<A A a€<A Amortization of completed technology A A 639 A A A 816 A A A 861 A A A 1,039A A A
1,500 A A A 1,855 A Transformation costs(1) A A 52 A A A a6”A A A a6”A A A a6”A A A 52A A A 4€” A Other adjustments A A 5A A A a6”A AA 1A AAa€”"AAAGAA
A &€” A Adjusted gross profit A $ 38,810 A A $ 34,088 A A $31,419A A $29,510A A $ 70,229 A A $ 63,598 A Grossmargin A A 46.9 %A A 421 %A A 461 %A A 454%A A
46.6 % A A 43.6 % Adjusted gross margin A A 47.8 % A A 43.1 %A A 47.4%A A 471 %A A 476 %A A 44.9% A (1) Transformation costs represent non-recurring expenses for
strategic projects with anticipated long-term benefits to the Company focused on cost reduction and productivity improvement that do not meet the definition of restructuring charges. These
costs are directed at simplifying, standardizing, streamlining, and optimizing the Companya€™s operations, processes and systems to permanently alter the Companya€™s operations for the
long term. For a project to be considered transformational, successful completion of the project must be expected to bring long-term material benefits to the organization and involve significant
changes to process and/or underlying technology. Transformation costs in the period result from actions taken as part of the Companya€™s 2024 transformation planA and primarily relate to
one time asset write downs associated with changes in technology, one time inventory write downs relating to restructuring actions taken in the period, and third-party consulting costs
associated with process and systems re-design. A &€« 33 Table of Contents A Three months ended December 31, 2024 compared to three months ended December 31, 2023 A The Sample
Management Solutions segment gross margin wasA 46.9%A for the three months ended December 31, 2024,A an increaseA of 482A basis points compared to the corresponding period in the
prior fiscal year. Adjusted gross margin was 47.8%A for the three months ended December 31, 2024, an increaseA of 464A basis points compared to the corresponding period in the prior fiscal
year, driven by higher gross margin for both Core Products and Sample Repository Services.A The increase in gross margin was mostly driven by improved operational efficiencies, sales mix,
and the impact of certain non-recurring items recorded in the same period last year.A Adjusted gross margin excludes the impact of amortization related to completed technology of

$0.6A million and $0.8A million for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and transformation costsA of $0.1A million for the three months ended December 31,
2024. A The Multiomics segment gross margin was 46.1%A for the three months ended December 31, 2024,A an increaseA of 70A basis points compared to the corresponding period in the
prior fiscal year. Adjusted gross margin was 47.4%A for the three months ended December 31, 2024, an increaseA of 34A basis points compared to the corresponding period in the prior fiscal
year, driven by higher gross margin for the Next Generation Sequencing and Gene Synthesis services, partially offset by lower gross margin for Sanger sequencing. The increase in gross
margin for Next Generation Sequencing and Gene Synthesis was driven byA higher revenues and operational efficiencies;A the margin pressure in Sanger sequencing was primarily driven by
lower revenues. Adjusted gross margin excludes the impact of amortization related to completed technology of $0. 9A million and $1.0A million for the three months ended December 31, 2024
and 2023, respectively. A Research and Development Expenses A Our research and development expenses for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows: A a€caecA
Three Months Ended December 31, A 4€<A 2024 A A 2023 A a€<A Inthousands A A % of Revenue A A In thousands A A % of Revenue A Sample Management Solutions A $ 3,784 A A
A47%A $4387A A A 5.6 % MultiomicsA A 2,506A A A 3.9%A A 2926A A A 4.7 % Total research and development expense A $ 6,380 A A A 43 %A $7313A A A 52%A
Total research and development expenses decreasedA $0.9A million for the three months endedA December 31, 2024A compared to the corresponding period in the prior fiscal year, driven by
cost reduction initiativesA across the business, primarily decreased compensation and benefits expense. A Selling, General and Administrative Expenses A Our selling, general and
administrative expenses for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows: A a€<A Three Months Ended December 31, A &€<A 2024 A A 2023 A 4€<A Inthousands A
A % of Revenue A A In thousands A A % of Revenue A Sample Management Solutions A $32,771A A A 40.4%A $30,369A A A 38.4 % Multiomics A A 31,326 A A A 473 %A A
29,847 A A A 47.6 % Corporate A A 9,116 A A A 62 %A A 9,673A A A 6.8 % Total selling, general and administrative expense A $ 73,213 A A A 49.6 % A $69,889A A A 49.3% A
Total selling, general and administrative expenses increasedA $3.3A million for the three months ended December 31, 2024 compared to the corresponding period in the prior fiscal year,
primarily driven by higher stock-based compensation expense and one-time costs related to the Company's leadership changes. A 34 Table of Contents A Restructuring Charges A
Restructuring charges were $0. 4A million for the three months ended December 31, 2024,A a decrease of $0.4A millionA compared to theA three months ended December 31, 2023 driven by
decreased activity onA the cost saving initiatives launched inA fiscal year 2024. See Note 7, Restructuring in the notes to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements included in
the section titled 4€ceFinancial Statementsa€ in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for additional information. A Non-Operating Income A Interest income, net 4€” We
recorded interest income of $4.3A millionA for the three months ended December 31, 2024, compared to $10. 0A million recorded for the three months ended December 31, 2023. The
decreaseA in interest income is due to decreased investments in marketable securities during the three months ended December 31, 2024 compared to the corresponding period in the prior
fiscal year. Please refer to Note 4, Marketable Securities and Note 5, Derivative Instruments in the notes to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements included in the section
titled &€ceFinancial Statementsa€ in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. A Other income (expense), net 4€“ We recorded other incomeA of $1.2 million for the three months
ended December 31, 2024, compared toA other incomeA of $0.5A millionA for the three months ended December 31, 2023, which primarily relates to foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from foreign currency denominated transactions and the revaluation of foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities. A Income Tax BenefitA A We recorded income tax
expenseA of $3.6A millionA forA the three months ended December 31,A 2024, whichA was primarily driven by the profits in our foreign jurisdictions and current state income taxes in
jurisdictions where we do not have a net operating loss carryover. Additionally, tax expense is generated on a global loss because the U.S. tax loss is not being benefited due to a valuation
allowance against U.S. deferred tax assets. A We recordedA income tax expense ofA $1.4 millionA during the three months ended DecemberA 31,A 2023.A The tax expense for the three months
endedA December 31, 2023A was primarily driven by the pre-tax income from foreign operations during the period, a $0.5A million stock compensation shortfall expense for tax deductions that
are lower than the associated book compensation expense and a $0.6A million expense related to a valuation allowance on beginning of year U.S. state deferred tax assets. A Discontinued
Operations A During the first quarter of fiscal year 2025, following approval by our Board of Directors,A we publicly announced our plan to sell the B Medical Systems business.A Results
related to the B Medical Systems segment are included within discontinued operations for theA three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. Revenue from discontinued operations was
$17.6 million and $12.6 million, respectlvely,A for theA three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, A wasA $3.9A million and $8.5A million,
respectively,A for theA three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. The loss from discontinued operations includes only direct operating expenses incurred that (1) are clearly identifiable
as costs being disposed of upon completion of the sale and (2) will not be continued by the Company on an ongoing basis. Indirect expenses which supported the B Medical Systems

segmentA and remain part of continuing operations, are not reflected in loss from discontinued operations.A Please refer to Note 3,A Discontinued Operations,A in the notes to the unaudited
condensed consolidated financial statements included in the section titled 4&€ceFinancial Statementsa€ in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. A 35 Table of Contents A A
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES A As of December 31, 2024, we had cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, and marketable securitiesA of $503.4 million and stockholdersa€™
equity of $1.7A billion. We believe that our current cash and cash equivalents will enable us to fund our operating expenses and capital expenditure requirements for at least one year from the
date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and for the foreseeable future thereafter. The current global economic environment makes it difficult for us to predict longer-term liquidity
requirements with sufficient certainty. We may be unable to obtain financing that may be required on terms favorable to us, if at all. If adequate funds are not available to us on acceptable
terms or otherwise, we may be unable to successfully develop or enhance products and services, respond to competitive pressures, or take advantage of acquisition opportunities, any of which
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results. A Cash Flows and Liquidity A Our cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and marketable
securities for ourA continuing operatlonsA as ofA December 31, 2024 andA September 30, 2024A are as follows: A In thousands A December 31, 2024 A A September 30, 2024 A Cash and
cash equivalents A $377,494 A A $ 280,030 A Restricted cashA A 10,399 A A A 10,061 A Short-term marketable securities A A 85,951 A A A 151,162 A Long-term marketable

A 1,570 A A A 4,321A A A 1,570A A 43
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securities A A 27,433 A A A 49,454 A 4€<A $ 501,277 A A $ 490,707 A A As of December 31, 2024, we had$124.6A million of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash held outside of the
United States, whichA are not currently needed for U.S. operations. Our marketable securities are generally readily convertible to cash without a material adverse impact. A Our cash flows on
a total company consolidated basis for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 were as follows: A 4€< A Three Months Ended December 31, A In thousands A 2024 A A 2023 A
Net cash provided by operating activities A $ 30,628 A A $ 13,756 A Net cash provided by investing activities A A 76,256 A A A 99,025 A Net cash used in financing activities A A (5,126)
A A (113,153 ) Effects of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash A A (8,311 ) A A 24,548 A Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash A $
93,447 A A $ 24,176 A A Cash inflows from operating activities for the three months ended December 31, 2024 were $30.6A million, primarily due to increasedA revenue andA collections and
a U.S.A federal tax refund of $11.5 million received in the three months ended December 31, 2024. Investing activities for the three months ended December 31, 2024 include

$40.8A millionA of purchases of marketable securities, offset by $125.6 million for sales and maturities of marketable securities. Financing activities for the three months ended December 31,
2024 include $4.9 million of excise tax payments related to our share repurchases settled in fiscal year 2024. A As of December 31, 2024, we had no outstanding debt on our balance sheet. A
Capital Resources A Contractual Obligations and Requirements A As of December 31, 2024, weA had non-cancellable commitments of $50.1A million, comprised of purchase orders for
inventory of $36.0A million and other operating expenseA commitments of $14.1A million. A 4€< 36 Table of Contents A A ItemA 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
A We are exposed to a variety of market risks, including changes in interest rates affecting the return on our cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and short-term and long-term
investments and fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. A Interest Rate Exposure A Our cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash consist principally of money market securities
which are short-term in nature. At December 31, 2024, our aggregate short-term and long-term investments were $113.4A million, consisting mostly of highly rated corporate debt securities
and U.S. government backed securities. At December 31, 2024, the net unrealized loss position on marketable securities was $0.2A million which is included in 4€ceAccumulated other
comprehensive lossa€ in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. A hypothetical 100 basis point change in interest rates would result in a $1.3A million and $2.7A million change in interest
income earned during the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. A Currency Rate Exposure A We have transactions and balances denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the transacting entity. Most of these transactions carrying foreign exchange risk are in Germany, the United Kingdom, and China. Sales in currencies other than
the U.S. dollar were approximately 37% and 27% of our total sales, respectively, during the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. These sales were made primarily by our foreign
subsidiaries, which have cost structures that substantially align with the currency of sale. A In the normal course of our business, we have liquid assets denominated in non-functional
currencies which include cash, short-term advances between our legal entities and accounts receivable which are subject to foreign currency exposure. Such balances were $38.8A million and
$63.9A million, respectively, at December 31, 2024 andA September 30, 2024, and primarily relate to the Euro, British Pound, and the Chinese Yuan. We mitigate the impact of potential
currency translation losses on these short-term intercompany advances by the timely settlement of each transaction, generally within 30A days. We also utilize forward contracts to mitigate our
exposures to currency movement. We incurred foreign currency gainsA of $0.5A million andA losses ofA $0.5A million during the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively,
which related to the currency fluctuation on these balances between the time the transaction occurred and the ultimate settlement of the transaction. A hypothetical 10% change in foreign
exchange rates as of December 31, 2024 would result in an approximate change of $0.2A million in our net incomeA during the three months ended December 31, 2024. A 4€< ItemA 4. Controls
and Procedures A Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.A Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and chief
financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Exchange Act. Disclosure controls
and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC4€™ s rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the chief executive officer and chief
financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Based upon this evaluation, our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of December 31, 2024A due to the material weakness described below.A Notwithstanding the material weakness, our chief executive
officer and our chief financial officer have concluded that the Companya€™s unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are fairly
stated in all material respects in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for each of the periods presented.A A 37 Table of Contents A Material Weakness in Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. As previously disclosed in theA 2024A Annual Report on Form 10-K, we identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting as we did
not design and maintain effective controls related to the review of the cash flow statement that continues to exist as of December 31, 2024.A The material weakness resulted in immaterial
misstatements in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Q2 and Q3 interim periods during fiscal year 2023, for the year ended September 30, 2023, as well as the Q1, Q2, and Q3
interim periods during fiscal year 2024 and in our supplemental cash flow disclosures for the year ended September 30, 2022, each interim and annual period during fiscal year 2023 and the
Q1, Q2 and Q3 interim periods during fiscal year 2024.A Additionally, the material weakness could result in material misstatements of our interim or annual consolidated statement of cash flows
or supplemental cash flow disclosures that would not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. A Remediation Plan.A During the three months endedA December 31, 2024, we have taken
steps to remediate the material weakness described above, including 1mplement1ngA a new cash flow reporting tool which automates the calculation of the effect of exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalents, and we have implementedA and documentedA new processes and controls over the review of our consolidated statement ofA cash flows. While the new and enhanced
controls have been designed and implemented, they have not operated for a sufficient period of time as of December 31, 2024 to assert the material weakness has been remediated. OnceA the
controlsA operate for a sufficient period of time and management has concluded, through testing, that the controls are operating effectively, the material weakness will be considered
remediated. We are committed to continuing to improve our internal control over financial reporting, and as we continue to evaluate and work to improve our internal control over financial
reporting, we may take additional measures to address control deficiencies, or we may modify certainA remediation measures. A Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting. As
described under the Remediation Plan section above, there wereA changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2024 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. A A PARTA II. OTHER INFORMATION A ItemA 1. Legal Proceedings A We are
subject to various legal proceedings, both asserted and unasserted, that arise in the ordinary course of business. We cannot predict the ultimate outcome of such legal proceedings or in certain
instances provide reasonable ranges of potential losses. However, as of the date of this Quarterly Report on FormA 10-Q, we believe that none of these claims will have a material adverse effect
on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations, in each case, for continuing operations. Please refer to Note 3, Discontinued OperationsA and Note 16, Commitments and
ContingenciesA in the notes to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements included in the section titled &€ceFinancial Statementsa€ in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q, for additional information about our legal proceedings. In the event of unexpected subsequent developments and given the inherent unpredictability of these legal proceedings,
there can be no assurance that our assessment of any claim will reflect the ultimate outcome and an adverse outcome in certain matters could, from time to time, have a material adverse effect
on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations in particular quarterly or annual periods. A 4€< Item 1A. Risk Factors A You should carefully review and consider the information
regarding certain factors that could materially affect our business, consolidated financial condition or results of operations set forth under the section titled &€ceRisk Factorsa€ in Part I, Item 1A
of the 2024A Annual Report on FormA 10-K. There have been no material changes from the risk factors disclosed in the 2024A Annual Report on FormA 10-K.A We may disclose changes to risk
factors or additional factors from time to time in our future filings with the SEC.A A A Item 5. Other Information A Rule 10b5-1 Trading Arrangements A During the three months ended
December 31, 2024, no director nor officer of the CompanyA adopted,A modifiedA orA terminatedA a Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement or non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement, as each term is
defined in Item 408 of Regulation S-K. A 38 Table of Contents A A A ItemA 6. Exhibits A The following exhibits are included herein: A Exhibit No. A Description &€« 4€< 4€< 10.1 &€«
Cooperation Agreement, by and among the Company and Politan Capital Management LP, Politan Capital Management GP LLC, Politan Capital NY LLC, and Politan Capital Partners GP LLC,
dated as of November 1, 2024 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 4, 2024). A A A 10.2¢ A Offer Letter, dated November 11,
2024, between Azenta, Inc. and Lawrence Lin (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 12, 2024). A A A 10.3* A Transition and
Severance Agreement and Release dated November 12, 2024 between Azenta, Inc. and Herman Cueto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
November 12, 2024). 4€< 4€< 4€< 31.01 a€« Certification of the Companya€™s Chief Executive Officer pursuant to SectionA 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 4€< &€« 4€< 31.02 a€<
Certification of the Companya€™s Chief Financial Officer pursuant to SectionA 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. €< 4€< 4€< 32 €« Certification of the Company&€™s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to SectionA 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 4€< 4€< &€« 101 4€< The following material from the Companya€™s Quarterly Report on

FormA 10-Q, for the quarter ended December 31, 2024, formatted in iXBRL (Inline eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i)A the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets;

(ii)A the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations; (iii)A the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss); (iv)A the unaudited Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows; (v) the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholdersa€ ™A Equity; and (vi)A the NotesA to the unaudited Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements. The instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because XBRL tags are embedded in the iXBRL document. a€< a€< a€« 104 a€<a€<a€«
Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as iXBRL and contained in Exhibit 101). A A A A A a€<*Management contract, compensatory plan or agreement. A 4€< 39 Table of Contents A
SIGNATURES A Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized. A A 4€< AZENTA,A INC. a€< 4€< Date: February 10, 2025 /s/ Lawrence Lin &€« Lawrence Lin &€« Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer a€« (Principal Financial
Officer) a€< &€« Date: February 10, 2025 /s/ Violetta A. Hughes &€« Violetta A. Hughes a€< Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer 4€< (Principal Accounting Officer) A 4€< 40 0001437749-
25-003325ex_753320.htm ExhibitA 31.01A CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTIONA 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002A I, John Marotta, certify that:A A 1. I have reviewed this
quarterly report on FormA 10-Q of Azenta,A Inc.; A A 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; A A 3. Based on my
knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; A A 4. The registranta€™s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act RulesA 13a-15(e)A and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act RulesA 13a-15(f)A and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have: A A a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared; A A b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; A A c.
Evaluated the effectiveness of the registranta€™ s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and A A d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registranta€™s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registranta€™s most recent fiscal quarter (the registranta€™s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting; and A A 5. The registranta€™s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our
most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registranta€™s auditors and the audit committee of the registranta€™s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions): A A a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registranta€™s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and A A b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees
who have a significant role in the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting. A 4€<A A /s/ John Marotta A John Marotta A President and Chief Executive Officer A A A Date:
February 10, 2025 A A 4€<A 0001437749-25-003325ex_753321.htm ExhibitA 31.02A CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTIONA 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002A I, Lawrence
Lin, certify that:A A 1.1 have reviewed this quarterly report on FormA 10-Q of Azenta,A Inc.; A A 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report; A A 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; A A 4. The registranta€™s other certifying officer and I are responsible for
establishing and mamtammg disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act RulesA 13a-15(e)A and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act RulesA 13a-15(f)A and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: A A a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; A A b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; A A c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registranta€™s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and A A d. Disclosed in this report
any change in the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registranta€™s most recent fiscal quarter (the registranta€™s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting; and A A 5. The registranta€™s
other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registranta€™s auditors and the audit committee of the
registranta€™s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): A A a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registranta€™s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and A A b. Any fraud, whether
or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the reglstranta€ s internal control over financial reporting. A 46<A A /s/ Lawrence Lin A
Lawrence Lin A Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer A A A Date: February 10, 2025 A A 4€<A 0001437749-25-003325ex 753322.htm

ExhibitA 32A A 4€«CERTIFICATIONA Pursuant to SectionA 906 of the Sarbanes- -Oxley Act of 2002 (Subsections (a) )A and (b)A of SectionA 1350, ChapterA 63 of Title 18, United States

Code)A Pursuant to SectionA 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a)A and (b)A of SectionA 1350, ChapterA 63 of Title 18, United States Code), each of the under51gned officers
of Azenta,A Inc., a Delaware corporation (the &€ceCompanya€), does hereby certify, to the best of such officera€™s knowledge and belief, that: A (1)A The Quarterly Report on FormA 10-Q for
the quarter endedA December 31, 2024A (this "Form 10-Q") of the Company fully complies with the requirements of SectionA 13(a)A or 15(d)A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;

andA (2)A The information contained in this FormA 10- -Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. A A A a€< Dated: February 10,
2025A A /s/ John Marotta 4€« A A John Marotta 46< A A President and Chief Executive Officer 4€< A A (Principal Executive Officer) 4€<A A &€« Dated: February 10, 2025 A A /s/ Lawrence
Lin 46<A A Lawrence Lin 4€<A A Executive Vice President and 4€< A A Chief Financial Officer 46< A A (Principal Financial Officer) A 4€<A signed original of this written statement required
by SectionA 906 has been provided to Azenta,A Inc. and will be retained by Azenta,A Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.A A






